1/27/2022

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM

Audit Committee Varsity Hall I, 2" Floor
Thursday, February 9, 2023 Union South, UW-Madison
8:45 a.m. - 10:00 a.m. 1308 W. Dayton Street

Madison, Wisconsin
& via Zoom Videoconference

A. Calling of the Roll
B. Declaration of Conflicts

C. Approval of the Minutes of the December 8, 2022 Audit Committee meeting and the
December 8, 2022 Joint Audit Committee/Business & Finance meeting

D. Internal Audit
1. Fiscal Year 2023 Audit Plan Progress Report

2. Summarized Results of Audits Recently Issued

E. Risk Management
1. Cyber Insurance Renewal Update

F. Office of Compliance and Integrity
1. Status of SYS 625 and Youth Protection Activities

G. UW-Madison NCAA Division | Athletics 2021-22 Report

Page 1 of 1



Audit Committee Item D.1.
Thursday, February 9, 2023

FISCAL YEAR 2023 AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS REPORT

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion only.

SUMMARY
One of the responsibilities of the Audit Committee, as outlined in the committee charter, is
to review and approve the annual internal audit plan and receive interim progress reports

at least quarterly.

The attached chart provides a summary of audit progress for the Fiscal Year 2023 Audit
Plan.

Presenter(s)

e Lori Stortz, Chief Audit Executive

ATTACHMENTS

A) UW System Administration Office of Internal Audit Fiscal Year 2023 Audit Plan
Progress Chart.

Page 1 of 1



Number of Audits
O RPN WA UIOON®

Audit Committee Item D.1. Attachment A

UW SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION
OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT

FISCAL YEAR 2023
AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS
Title Risks
1 Payroll (Bi-Annual Auditing) Fraud, Data Accuracy, Compliance with Policy
2 | Purchasing Cards (Bi-Annual Auditing) | Fraud, Embezzlement, Compliance with Policy
3 Criminal Background Checks Reputational, Conflicts of Interest, Regulatory
Compliance, Compliance with Policy
4 Information Technology Remote Access (Phase T Data Security, Reputational, Operational, Financial

5 Behavioral Health Student Health and Safety, Compliance

6 Compliance with Policy, Financial, Operational
7 Controlled Substances in Research Compliance, Fraud, Reputation, Public Safety
8 Compliance with Laws, Reputational

9 General Ledger Clearing Accounts Fraud, Financial

10 Information Technology Asset Management Compliance with Policy, Data Security, Data
Availability, Operational, Financial, Fraud

11 Information Technology Bi-Monthly Compliance Reports Compliance with Policy

Ethics

13 Madison NCAA Athletics Compliance Audit Compliance

14 NCAA Athletics Division I Consulting Engagements Data Accuracy
15 S0 o Confiels O TRERSE | Conflics of nerest, Fraud, Financial

16 Recruitment and Admission of International Students Fraud, Compliance with Laws and Policy,
Reputational

17 Research Integrity Compliance, Fraud, Reputation

18 ShopUW+ Internal Controls Fraud, Financial, Operational

19 Working in Isolation Human Safety, Regulatory Compliance

Not Started Planning Has Begun Fieldwork/Reporting  Bi-Annual Auditing Completed Deferred
in Progress




Audit Committee Item D.2.
Thursday, February 9, 2023

SUMMARIZED RESULTS OF AUDITS RECENTLY ISSUED

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion only.

SUMMARY

Since the December 8, 2022 meeting of the Audit Committee, the Office of Internal Audit
has issued the following reports:

e NCAA Athletics Division | Agreed-Upon Procedures Engagement - Executive
Summary
o NCAA Agreed-Upon Procedures Report - UW-Green Bay
o NCAA Agreed-Upon Procedures Report - UW-Milwaukee
e Recruitment and Admission of International Students Audit - Executive Summary

Presenter(s)

e Lori Stortz, Chief Audit Executive

BACKGROUND

One of the responsibilities of the Audit Committee, as outlined in the committee charter, is
to summarize results of audits recently issued.

Page 1 of 1



Audit Committee Item E.1.
February 9, 2023

CYBER INSURANCE RENEWAL UPDATE

REQUESTED ACTION

For information and discussion only.

SUMMARY

An update on UW System’s 2022 cyber insurance renewal will be provided.

Presenter(s)

e Angela Ryan, Director, Risk Management
e Edward Murphy, Associate Vice President and Chief Information Security Officer

BACKGROUND

Since 2015, UW System has been successfully negotiating and purchasing cyber insurance
systemwide for its 13 institutions. However, over the course of the last two years, market
conditions and non-uniform controls across all institutions have resulted in a decrease in
benefits and an increase in premiums. We were fortunate to see a slight increase in
benefits and coverage for the 2023 calendar year. Details of this coverage will be shared
with the Audit Committee during this meeting.

UW System will be pursuing longer term options and solutions to reduce cyber risk and

improve operational resiliency through critical, long-term planning for its information
security operations systemwide.

Page 1 of 1



Audit Committee Item F.1.
Thursday, February 9, 2023

STATUS OF SYS 625 AND YOUTH PROTECTION ACTIVITIES

REQUESTED ACTION

Item for information and discussion only.

SUMMARY

The Office of Compliance and Integrity (OCI) has been working with UW System
stakeholders to revise SYS 625, Youth Protection and Compliance. The revised policy was
sent to the Finance and General Administration Policy Group for the formal approval
process and is routed to UW System President Rothman for signature. OCI continues to
support campus efforts through monthly meetings and providing professional
development. In January 2023, OCl hosted the annual Youth Programming and Compliance
Conference in Madison and had a virtual option. Day one was geared towards Precollege
Liaisons and campus stakeholder involved in the implementation of SYS 625, Youth
Protection and Compliance, while the second day focused on key elements of effective
programming for youth activities. As campuses prepare for spring and summer activities at
pre-pandemic levels, OCI will continue to provide campuses guidance with campus policies
and begin work in other areas involving minors.

Presenter(s)

e Paige Smith, UW System Chief Compliance Officer
e Prenicia Clifton, Director of Youth Protection and Compliance

BACKGROUND

UW System institutions offer hundreds of academic and recreational programs/activities to
youth (ages 5-18 years old) and have operated these activities independently of each other.
Under the guidance of the Director of Youth Protection and Compliance, UW System has
been working with stakeholders to develop UW System Administrative (SYS) Policy 625,
Youth Protection and Compliance, and best practices to empower institutions with the
ability to implement the minimum youth protection standards required for minors on
campus whether activities are sponsored by the university, organized by affiliated entities
or a third party. The Risk Management's Minor Protection and Adult Leadership Policy has



been integrated into SYS 625 and will be rescinded once SYS 625 is approved by the UW
System President.

Previous Action or Discussion

Resolution 11780, adopted 02/11/2022, created Regent Policy Document 23-3.

Related Policies

Regent Policy Document, 23-3, Youth Protection, Compliance, and Data Collection
SYS 625, “Youth Protection and Compliance”

Regent Policy Document 20-19, “University of Wisconsin System Criminal
Background Check Policy”

Regent Policy Document 23-2, “Health, Safety and Security at UW System
Institutions”

Regent Policy Document 25-5, “Information Technology: Information Security”
Chapter UWS 17, Wis. Admin. Code, Nonacademic Student Disciplinary Procedures «
Chapter UWS 18,Wis. Admin. Code, Conduct on University Lands

Wisconsin Statute Section 48.981(2)(a)

2011 Executive Order #54 Relating to Supplemental Mandatory Reporting
Requirements of Child Abuse and Neglect

Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972 [20 U.S.C. § 1681]

Jeanne Clery Disclosure Act [20 U.S.C. § 1092(f)]

US Code of Federal Regulations [34 C.F.R. 668.46

Page 2 of 2



Audit Committee Item G.
Thursday, February 9, 2023

UW-MADISON NCAA DIVISION | ATHLETICS
2021-22 REPORT

REQUESTED ACTION
This item is for discussion purposes only.
SUMMARY

The University of Wisconsin-Madison (“UW") Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (Athletics
Department) is dedicated to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide range
of students and creating an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their
academic and competitive goals, regardless of gender or ethnic backgrounds.

This report highlights the achievements of UW athletic teams in the National Collegiate
Athletic Association this past year. In addition, it addresses the measures and benchmarks
used to assess UW student athletes’ academic success across sports and in comparison, to
student athletes in the Big Ten and NCAA Division |. Also included are financial highlights
for 2021-2022, a copy of the UW System Administration Office of Internal Audit compliance
review, and a list of Level Ill & Level IV NCAA Violations. Each area is supplemented with
detailed reports.

Presenter(s)

e Chris McIntosh, Director of Athletics, UW-Madison

e Marcus Sedberry, Deputy Athletic Director, UW-Madison

e Adam Barnes, Associate Athletic Director, CFO for Business Operations, UW-
Madison

e Katie Ahrens Smith, Senior Associate Athletic Director & Senior Woman
Administrator, UW-Madison

e Doug Tiedt, Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, UW-Madison

BACKGROUND

Collegiate athletics includes high-profile activities that exist for the betterment of the
student body, student-athletes, and the university. Athletic activities and programs provide
valuable experiences for student-athletes, opportunities to engage the broader community
and as a representative of the institution to the public. This visibility, as well as the number
of student-athlete participants, the members of the public attending athletic events and

Page 1 of 2



the substantial compliance requirements, necessitates a high level of oversight and
scrutiny by both administrators and governing bodies.

In 2012, the Association of Governing Boards of Colleges and Universities (AGB) issued a
report, “Trust, Accountability, and Integrity: Board Responsibilities for Intercollegiate
Athletics,” that highlighted the important role of higher education governing boards in
providing proper oversight of athletics programs. That same year, the Board of Regents
established a reporting framework for institutions that participate in NCAA Division |
athletics.

The Accountability Reporting Framework provides the Board with consistent information
about each NCAA Division | athletics program, enhancing the Board’s ability to effectively
monitor the activities of UW System’s Division | athletics programs.

Under the Regents’ Accountability Reporting Framework, each UW System Division |
athletics program is required to provide information to the Board annually describing the
extent to which the program: 1) adheres to any performance standards implemented by
an institution or its athletic board; 2) safeguards the welfare of all students; 3) maintains
NCAA compliance; and 4) assures fiscal integrity. The attached report is submitted in
accordance with those requirements.

Related Policies

e Regent Policy Document 10-1, “Endorsement of the Statement of Principles from the
Knight Foundation Commission on Intercollegiate Athletics”

e Accountability Reporting Framework for Board of Regents Oversight of NCAA
Intercollegiate Athletics Programs

ATTACHMENTS

A) 2021-22 Report to Board of Regents on Intercollegiate Athletics at UW-Madison

Page 2 of 2


https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/policies/endorsement-of-statement-of-principles-from-the-knight-foundation-commission-on-intercollegiate-athletics/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/policies/endorsement-of-statement-of-principles-from-the-knight-foundation-commission-on-intercollegiate-athletics/
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/download/policy_attachment/rpd10-1_AccountabilityReportingFramework.pdf
https://www.wisconsin.edu/regents/download/policy_attachment/rpd10-1_AccountabilityReportingFramework.pdf

Audit Committee Item G. Attachment A.

2021-22

REPORT TO BOARD OF REGENTS ON INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS
AT UW-MADISON

February 9, 2023



[
2021-22 Executive Summary to Board of Regents

Introduction

This report provides information about University of Wisconsin-Madison intercollegiate athletics for the
Board of Regents. It addresses fiscal responsibility, academics, and compliance.

The Athletics Department: Makeup, Mission, & Membership

The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, generally referred to as the “Athletics Department,” is a
departmental unit within the University governed by the policies of UW-Madison (“UW?”). While
retaining ultimate authority, subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the University
of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, responsibility, and accountability for
the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the Athletic Director. There are no
exceptions to this delegation. The Athletic Board exercises the authority of the faculty as part of the
University’s shared-governance system.’

The Athletics Department dedicates itself to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide
range of students and providing an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their
academic and competitive goals.

The Athletics Department is a member institution of the National Collegiate Athletic Association
(NCAA), the Big Ten Conference, and the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA).
Therefore, the Athletics Department abides by the rules and regulations promulgated by these
organizations.

On-Field Achievements

The UW experienced another successful season on the playing field, headlined by the Women’s
Volleyball team’s first ever National Championship in 2021. The Football team marked the program’s
20™"-straight bowl appearance, capped off with a victory in the 2021 Las Vegas Bowl. Earlier in the
Fall, the Men’s Cross Country team won its fourth straight Big Ten Championship and placed 11" at
the NCAA Championships. In the Spring, Women’s Swimming freshman student-athlete Paige
McKenna was crowned NCAA National Champion in the 1650-yard freestyle. The Men’s Basketball
team earned a share of the Big Ten Championship for the second time in the past three seasons, en
route to another appearance in the NCAA Tournament. The Women’s Softball team returned to the
NCAA Tournament, winning its first tournament game since 2019, and senior Men’s Track & Field
student-athlete Olin Hacker capped off the UW Athletics playing season and his own career with a
National Championship in the 5,000M race at the NCAA Outdoor Championships.

Financial Highlights

The full report contains the final budget, debt balances and payments, and endowments for the 2021-
22 fiscal year (see Appendices C and D). The annual budget for the Athletics Department supports 23
sports and more than 800 student-athlete participation opportunities. The Athletics Department
employs nearly 400 full-time staff. The Athletics Department hosts more than 1.8 million spectators
each year and its economic impact has been estimated at $757 million annually, with nearly 5,600
jobs supported and created.

! For a more detailed elaboration on the authority over intercollegiate athletics, please see Appendix A: “University of
Wisconsin-Madison Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics.” These standards
were prepared in response to the standards adopted by the Big Ten’s Council of Presidents/Chancellors (Appendix B).



|
Academic Measures

The figures presented in the executive summary are also located in each of the corresponding
sections. Please refer to later sections if there are questions regarding the sources of this
information.

The Athletics Department uses various means to monitor the academic progress of the student-
athletes. The Federal Graduation Rate (FGR), Graduation Success Rate (GSR), and Academic
Progress Rate (APR) are the most recognizable of these measures.

The FGR is compiled by the U.S. Department of Education and measures the percentage of first-time,
full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering their original four-year institution. The
GSR differs from the FGR in that it excludes from the denominator those student-athletes who leave
the institution in good academic standing and includes in the numerator those who transfer into the
institution and go on to graduate. Lastly, the APR is a term-by-term calculation of the eligibility and
retention of all student-athletes. A score of 1,000 means every student-athlete on that particular team
stayed eligible and returned to school. Teams begin losing points for student-athletes who are not
eligible and/or are not retained.

Of the eight student-athletes in the 2015-16 single-year FGR cohort for the three highest revenue
men’s and women’s sports who did not graduate from the UW in six years, three transferred to other
institutions and earned their degrees, one left early to pursue professional opportunities, and four
student-athletes did not transfer or graduate.

The APR for UW student-athletes — used by the NCAA to hold institutions accountable for the
academic progress of their student-athletes — was above 930 in all sports in the multiyear measure
and in all but one sport in single-year measures. The GSR for UW student-athletes was 91% in 2021-
22, which was two percentage points higher than the GSR for all NCAA Division | student-athletes
(89%). The UW student-athlete four-year average FGR was 76% in 2021-22, compared to 76% for
the Big Ten Conference, and 69% for all NCAA Division | student-athletes. The four-year average
FGR for all UW-Madison students was 88%.

The Academic Support staff also utilizes its own additional measures to track success. For example,
the Athletics Department considers a student-athlete successful who matriculates at UW and receives
Athletics aid, but graduates from another institution. This rate is compared to that of the general
student population at both a six- and ten-year mark.

University of Wisconsin student-athletes carried a 3.34 cumulative grade-point average (GPA) at the
end of the Spring 2022 term. After the Spring 2022 semester, 25 student-athletes carried a perfect
4.00 cumulative GPA. Between the Fall 2021 and Spring 2022 semesters, a total of 414 student-
athletes earned Academic All-Big Ten honors.

UW undergraduate and graduate student-athletes currently major in 95 diverse areas of study.
Consumer Behavior & Marketplace Studies, Personal Finance, Kinesiology, and Psychology are the
most common majors among undergraduate student-athletes. Additionally, of these 95 areas of study,
there are currently 72 different areas in which 10 or fewer student-athletes have declared as majors. A
total of 169 current student-athletes graduated with either a Bachelor’s or Master’s degree during the
2021-22 academic year.

The UW does not employ a special admissions process for student-athletes. Student-athletes
progress through the admissions process in the same manner as other applicants. The UW utilizes a
holistic, competitive, and selective admissions review.



Agreed-Upon Procedures & Intercollegiate Athletics Budget Report

The full report contains reports from an independent auditor on the Athletics Department’s agreed-
upon procedures and budget report for the 2021-22 fiscal year.

Compliance

The Athletics Department recently underwent a compliance review by the UW System Administration
Office of Internal Audit for the 2021-22 academic year. The review did not identify any audit comments
to report.

The Athletics Department reported no Level | or Level |l violations (formerly classified as “major”
violations) and 18 Level lll or Level IV violations (formerly classified as “secondary” violations) to the
NCAA and Big Ten in 2021-22. These numbers are consistent with pre-pandemic reporting statistics.



e
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. DIVISION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS INTRODUCTION

A. MISSION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS .......eveeseseseseeseeseesesssesssssessssssssassessessassessassesssssssssssssnsenssneenes 1

B. NATIONAL COLLEGIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION ......vuvreriaistesreeessesseesensessesseessessessessessessessessessessessnesesaes 2

C. HISTORY OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETCS. ...euveurtueuersrsnseeseesesssesess st sessse s ssessessessessessenssssenns 2
In. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A.2021-22 FINAL BUDGET REPORT (SEE APPENDIX) .....cvuvrtreairiasestesessessisessesssssssssessessessessessessenssssesssenes 4

B. 2021-22 DEBT BALANCES & PAYMENTS REPORT (SEE APPENDIX) .....eureureurenrenrenressssessessessessensnesesnenenaes 4

C. 2021-22 VALUE OF ENDOWMENTS DEDICATED TO SUPPORT ATHLETICS ......vureurenrenrenrsrsrsensessessenseeennenenns 4
. MEASURES & BENCHMARKS USED TO ASSESS STUDENT-ATHLETE ACADEMIC PROGRESS

A. ACADEMIC PROGRESS RATE .......cuttuttutiaiiariesesssessessessessessesssesesssss sttt ssessessessessessenseenes 4

B. GRADUATION SUCCESS RATE ......vuiuuriaiiatiaesesesseisessesseesesssses s sttt ssessessessessesseesesaes 5

C. FEDERAL GRADUATION RATE.......0uttuttuteaitntentasessessessessessessessesssesesss sttt ssense e neessenns 6

D. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: GPA & MAJORS .......ouvuvriririarissisissessi s ss s s s sssesenaes 7

E. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: SPECIAL ADMISSIONS OF STUDENT-ATHLETES ......vuvueveereseeseeseeseeseeseseeeeneenees 8
IV. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW

A\ SEE APPENDIX ...t totseseeseesee et se e es s s s a8 s s 8
V. NCAA SELF STUDY REPORT

A\ SEE APPENDIX ...t totseseeseesee et se e es s s s a8 s s 8
VI LIST OF LEVEL IIl & LEVEL IV NCAA VIOLATIONS & NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION LETTER

A\ SEE APPENDIX ..ottt sttt s ettt 8
VI.  AGREED UPON PROCEDURES & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS BUDGET REPORT

A\ SEE APPENDIX ..ottt sttt s ettt 8

TABLE OF APPENDICES ..........couurvttuuirietsmaeeessaereesseeessssesssssses st ssss st sttt 9



C_________________________________________________________________________________
INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to provide annual information of intercollegiate athletics and the functions
outlined by the Faculty Senate to the Board of Regents. In the first section, information is provided
about the NCAA, the Big Ten, and the Intercollegiate Athletics Department. The subsequent sections
outline specific information addressing academics, fiscal responsibility, and compliance regulation.

I. DIVISION OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, generally referred to as the “Athletics Department,” is a
departmental unit within the University governed by the policies of the University of Wisconsin-
Madison (“UW?”). While retaining ultimate authority subject to the general oversight of the Board of
Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor has delegated the authority,
responsibility, and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the
Athletic Director. There are no exceptions to this delegation. The Athletic Board exercises the
authority of the faculty as part of the UW’s shared-governance system.?

A. Mission of Intercollegiate Athletics

The Athletics Department dedicates itself to the mission of providing athletic opportunities to a wide
range of students and creating an environment in which all student-athletes can achieve their
academic and competitive goals. The Athletics Department strives to provide equitable opportunities
for all student-athletes and staff regardless of gender or ethnic backgrounds. To honor its academic
mission and that of the UW, the Athletics Department supports the educational aspirations, academic
progress, and general welfare of the student-athlete. In competition, the Athletics Department fosters
principles of sportsmanship, respect, fair play, and athletic excellence. In all of its activities, the
Athletics Department insists on integrity, ethical conduct, and accountability.

The Athletics Department’s mission on behalf of the...

o Student-Athletes - Provide the resources for student-athletes to pursue their academic and
athletic dreams, while shaping their development into adulthood.

o University - Operate all areas of the Athletics Department with class and quality while
accepting our role as a source of school spirit and pride for all faculty, staff, students, and
alumni of the UW.

o Citizens of the State - Support the community by participating in a variety of public service
projects, hosting events that provide good entertainment and contribute positively to the
economy, and serving as a source of state pride through the academic achievement of our
student-athletes and successful performance in their athletic pursuits.

This mission is derived from the overall mission of the UW to provide the opportunity for highest
achievement in all areas of human knowledge and endeavor: intellectual, artistic, and physical.
Intercollegiate athletics is a part of the UW’s total educational purpose: (1) through values; (2) through
diversity and outreach; (3) through cultural appreciation; and (4) through physical human
development. In addition to these four explicit interactions with the UW’s purpose, intercollegiate
athletics is aligned with the UW’s mission through tradition.

2 For a more detailed elaboration on the authority over intercollegiate athletics, please see Appendix A: “University of
Wisconsin-Madison Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics.” These standards
were prepared in response to the standards adopted by the Big Ten’s Council of Presidents/Chancellors (Appendix B).

1



[
B. National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA)

The colleges, universities, and conferences, referred to as “members,” make up the NCAA. The
members appoint volunteer representatives who serve on committees that introduce and vote on rules
called bylaws. The members also establish programs to govern, promote, and further the purposes
and goals of intercollegiate athletics.

Approximately 500 paid professionals who implement the rules and programs established by the
membership make up the “national office.” The national office staff is located primarily at the NCAA
headquarters office in Indianapolis, Indiana. The entire organization, comprised of members and
staffs, is referred to as the NCAA.

The NCAA's core ideology consists of two notions: core purpose — the organization's reason for being
— and core values — essential and enduring principles that guide the organization. Its purpose is to
govern competition in a fair, safe, equitable, and sportsmanlike manner and to integrate intercollegiate
athletics into higher education so that the educational experience of the student-athlete is paramount.
The NCAA - through its member institutions, conferences, and national office staff — shares a belief in
and commitment to:

* The collegiate model of athletics in which students participate as an avocation,
balancing their academic, social, and athletics experiences.

» The highest levels of integrity and sportsmanship.

« The pursuit of excellence in both academics and athletics.

» The supporting role that intercollegiate athletics plays in the higher education mission
and in enhancing the sense of community and strengthening the identity of member

institutions.

* Aninclusive culture that fosters equitable participation for student-athletes and career
opportunities for coaches and administrators from diverse backgrounds.

» Respect for institutional autonomy and philosophical differences.

» Presidential leadership of intercollegiate athletics at the campus, conference, and
national levels.

For more information regarding the NCAA, visit http://www.ncaa.org/.

C. History of Intercollegiate Athletics

The creation of athletic teams occurred just 25 years after the UW was founded in 1848. By the end of
the 19™ century, the UW joined six other schools to form the Western Conference (now known as the
Big Ten Conference). As a charter member of the Big Ten, the UW has a long and proud athletic
history.

Men’s sports dominated the scene at the UW until the late 1960s when women’s athletics began to
grow. Naming Kit Saunders as the administrator of the women'’s sports program in 1967 and the
enactment of Title IX of the Educational Amendments Act of 1972 both helped vault UW women’s
athletics into the mainstream. That movement, along with the growing popularity of sports on college
campuses around the nation, catapulted the Athletics Department into the college culture.


http://www.ncaa.org/

The UW experienced another successful season on the playing field, headlined by the Women’s
Volleyball team’s first ever National Championship in 2021. The Football team marked the program’s
20™"-straight bowl appearance, capped off with a victory in the 2021 Las Vegas Bowl. Earlier in the
Fall, the Men’s Cross Country team won its fourth straight Big Ten Championship and placed 11" at
the NCAA Championships. In the Spring, Women’s Swimming freshman student-athlete Paige
McKenna was crowned NCAA National Champion in the 1650-yard freestyle. The Men’s Basketball
team earned a share of the Big Ten Championship for the second time in the past three seasons, en
route to another appearance in the NCAA Tournament. The Women’s Softball team returned to the
NCAA Tournament, winning its first tournament game since 2019, and senior Men’s Track & Field
student-athlete Olin Hacker capped off the UW Athletics playing season and his own career with a
National Championship in the 5,000M race at the NCAA Outdoor Championships.

For more information regarding the Athletics Department, visit www.uwbadgers.com.

The Athletics Department is a member institution of the National Collegiate Athletic Association
(NCAA), the Big Ten Conference, and the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA).
Therefore, the Athletics Department abides by the rules and regulations promulgated by these
organizations.

Big Ten Conference

The Big Ten Conference is an association of 14 world-class universities whose member institutions
share a common mission of research, graduate, professional, and undergraduate teaching, and public
service. Intercollegiate athletics has an important place within the Big Ten’s common mission.
Conference institutions sponsor broad-based athletic programs supporting more than 300 teams.

Founded in 1896, the Big Ten Conference has sustained a comprehensive set of shared practices
and policies that enforce the priority of academics in student-athletes’ lives and emphasize the values
of integrity, fairness, and competitiveness. Big Ten universities provide nearly $200 million in athletic
scholarship aid to more than 9,500 men and women student-athletes who compete for 28
championships — 14 for men and 14 for women.

The Big Ten Conference institutions provide an avenue for thousands of young men and women to
pursue higher education while competing in sport. The Big Ten Conference sponsors the following 28
sports:

Men's Sports Women's Sports
Baseball Basketball
Basketball Cross Country
Cross Country Field Hockey
Football Golf

Golf Gymnastics
Gymnastics Lacrosse

Ice Hockey Rowing

Lacrosse Soccer

Soccer Softball

Swimming & Diving Swimming & Diving
Tennis Tennis

Indoor Track & Field Indoor Track & Field
Outdoor Track & Field Outdoor Track & Field
Wrestling Volleyball

For more information regarding the Big Ten Conference, visit www.bigten.org.
3



http://www.uwbadgers.com/
http://www.bigten.org/

-
Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA)

The Big Ten Conference does not sponsor women’s hockey; thus the Athletics Department is a
member of the Western Collegiate Hockey Association (WCHA).

From the WCHA'’s founding days as the Midwest Collegiate Hockey League (MCHL) from 1951-53, as
the Western Intercollegiate Hockey League (WIHL) from 1953-58, and ultimately as the Western
Collegiate Hockey Association in 1959, this prestigious association has maintained a tradition of
excellence that is second to none. With a noteworthy past that spans seven decades, three overriding
characteristics that have continued to define the WCHA over its existence are history, tradition, and
success.

For more information regarding the WCHA, visit http://www.wcha.com/.

Il. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A. 2021-22 Final Budget Report

Please see Appendix C for the detailed report.
B. 2021-22 Debt Balances & Payments Report
Please see Appendix D for the detailed report.

C. 2021-22 Value of Endowments Dedicated to Support Athletics

Market Value Cashl/Interest
June 2022 $124,267,994 $4,759,918
June 2021 $143,087,280 $4,253,710

lll. MEASURES & BENCHMARKS USED TO ASSESS STUDENT-ATHLETE ACADEMIC
PROGRESS

A. Measure 1: Academic Progress Rate (APR)

Please see Appendix E for the detailed NCAA 2020-2021 report. This report is the most recent
publicly available data.

Definition: A term-by-term calculation of the eligibility and retention of all student-athletes. Each
student-athlete receiving athletically related financial aid earns one retention point for staying in
school and one eligibility point for being academically eligible. A team’s total points are divided by
points possible and then multiplied by one thousand to equal the team’s Academic Progress Rate
score.

Benchmark: Achieve a multiyear Academic Progress Rate (APR) above 930 for all sports.
Benchmark: Achieve a single-year Academic Progress Rate (APR) above 930 for all sports.

Number of Sports with a Multiyear APR below 930

Year = APR<930
2021 0 sports
2020 0 sports
2019 0 sports
4


http://www.wcha.com/

-
APR by Sport

Single-Year = 2020-21 academic year
Multiyear = 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 (avg. of single-year rates)

Men’s Sports Single-Year APR Multiyear APR Ncl\,:l;\ltéy:::t [:\IPR
Basketball 925 974 968
Cross Country 973 976 983
Football 987 992 964
Golf 1,000 1,000 988
Hockey 1,000 981 986
Rowing - - -
Soccer 981 965 979
Swimming & Diving 960 987 986
Tennis 1,000 994 986
Track (1/0) 989 974 974
Wrestling 975

Multiyear DI

Women’s Sports Single-Year APR = Multiyear APR NCAA Sport APR

Basketball 978 981 983
Cross Country 1,000 1,000 990
Golf 1,000 1,000 993
Hockey 978 982 989
Rowing 991 994 990
Soccer 1,000 997 990
Softball 1,000 1,000 987
Swimming & Diving 1,000 1,000 993
Tennis 1,000 993 991
Track (1/0) 1,000 990 984
Volleyball 1,000 1,000 989

Three-Year single-year APR trend for the three largest revenue-generating sports

. Football | M.Basketball =~ M.Hockey |
2020-2021 987 925 1,000
2019-2020 1,000 979 990
2018-2019 1,000 939 942

B. Measure 2: Graduation Success Rate (GSR)

Please see Appendix F for the most recent published report.

Definition: The percentage of first-time, full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering
their original four-year institution, excluding from the denominator those student-athletes who leave
the institution in good academic standing and including in the numerator those who transfer into the
institution and go on to graduate.



Benchmark: Achieve a GSR for student-athletes that is equal to or greater than the median GSR for
the Big Ten Conference. Note: 2022 reporting year represents multi-year GSR of 2012-2015 cohorts.

UW Student-Athletes vs. Median of Big Ten Conference

Year UW S-A Big Ten S-A
2022 91% 92%
2021 91% 92%
2020 91% 92%

Benchmark: Achieve a GSR for student-athletes that is equal to or greater than the GSR for all

NCAA Division | student-athletes. Note: 2022 reporting year represents multi-year GSR of 2012-2015

cohorts.

UW Student-Athletes vs. All Division | Student-Athletes

Year | UWS-A | D1S-A
2022 91% 89%
2021 91% 89%
2020 91% 88%

C. Measure 3: Federal Graduation Rate

Definition: The percentage of first-time, full-time freshmen who graduate within six years of entering

their original four-year institution.

Three-Year single-year Federal Graduation Rate Trend for the Three Highest Revenue Men’s

Sports*
Football Basketball Hockey
2021-2022 (2015-2016 Cohort) 86% 60% 43%
2020-2021 (2014-2015 Cohort) 1% 100% 64%
2019-2020 (2013-2014 Cohort) 79% 80% 100%

Three-Year single-year Federal Graduation Rate Trend for the Three Highest Revenue

Women’s Sports*

Basketball Hockey ‘ Volleyball
2021-2022 (2015-2016 Cohort) 50% 100% 80%
2020-2021 (2014-2015 Cohort) 100% 100% n/a?
2019-2020 (2013-2014 Cohort) 67% 100% 67%

*There were 36 student-athletes in the 2015-2016 single-year FGR cohort for the three highest
revenue men'’s and women’s sports. Of the cohort, 28 student-athletes graduated from the UW in six
years; of the other eight, three transferred to other institutions and earned their degrees, one left early
to pursue professional opportunities, and four student-athletes did not transfer or graduate.

AThere were zero student-athletes in the 2014-2015 single-year FGR cohort for the sport of Volleyball.

(o)



. ______________________________________________________________________________________|
Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for all

UW-Madison students. Note: The 2022 reporting year represents 2015-16 entering freshman cohort.
The four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using
date from previous years.

UW Student-Athletes vs. All UW Madison Students

Year | UWS-A uw UW S-A uw
2022 7% 89% 76% 88%
2021 74% 88% 75% 87%
2020 84% 85% 73% 86%

Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for the
Big Ten Conference. Note: The 2022 reporting year represents 2015-16 entering freshman cohort. The
four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using date
from previous years.

UW Student-Athletes vs. Median of Big Ten Conference

Graduation Rate

Four-Class Average

Year UW S-A Big Ten S-A UW S-A Big Ten S-A
2022 77% 76% 76% 76%
2021 74% 76% 75% 75%
2020 84% 79% 73% 74%

Benchmark: Achieve a student-athlete graduation rate that is equal to or greater than the rate for all
Division | student-athletes. Note: The 2022 reporting year represents 2015-16 entering freshman cohort.
The four-class average combines the current cohort with the three previous freshman classes, using
date from previous years.

UW Student-Athletes vs. All NCAA Division | Student-Athletes

Graduation Rate Four-Class Average

Year UW S-A D1 S-A UW S-A D1 S-A
2022 77% 69% 76% 69%
2021 74% 69% 75% 69%
2020 84% 69% 73% 68%

D. Additional Information: GPA & Major Selection

UW student-athletes carried a 3.34 cumulative grade-point average (GPA) at the end of the Spring
2022 term. After the Spring 2022 semester, 25 student-athletes carried a perfect 4.00 cumulative
GPA. Between the Fall 2021 and Spring 2022 semesters, a total of 414 student- athletes earned
Academic All-Big Ten honors.

UW undergraduate and graduate student-athletes currently major in 95 diverse areas of study.
Consumer Behavior & Marketplace Studies, Personal Finance, Kinesiology, and Psychology are the
most common majors among undergraduate student-athletes. Additionally, of these 95 areas of study,
there are currently 72 different areas in which 10 or fewer student-athletes have declared as majors. A
total of 169 current student-athletes graduated with either a Bachelor’s or Master’s degree during the
2021-22 academic year



'
For a full list of majors, please see Appendix G. This chart is a breakdown of student-athletes’

declared maijors (by percentage) compared against the percentage of UW students who are majoring
in each of those areas. The categories of majors were predetermined by the report of major
breakdowns that is produced by the UW-Madison Registrar’s Office. The total number of student-
athlete majors is representative of the number of majors rather than the number of student-athletes,
because a student-athlete with a declared double major is counted twice.

E. Additional Information: Special Admissions of Student-Athletes

The UW does not employ a special admissions process for student-athletes. Student-athletes
progress through the admissions process in the same manner as other applicants. The UW utilizes a
holistic, competitive, and selective admissions review. The Athletics Department’s goal is to recruit,
admit, and enroll a high quality and diverse student body. The academic record always comes first in
our review, but we also consider written statements, standardized test scores, extracurricular
activities, leadership involvement, and optional letters of recommendation.

IV. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW

The Athletics Department recently underwent a compliance review by the UW System Administration
Office of Internal Audit for the 2021-22 academic year. The review did not identify any audit comments
to report. Please see Appendix H for the full report.

V. NCAA SELF-STUDY REPORT
The NCAA self-study report requirement no longer exists. In lieu of this report, please see Appendix |
for the UW’s 2021-22 review of the effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional
Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics, as required by the Big Ten Conference.

VI. LIST OF LEVEL lll & LEVEL IV NCAA VIOLATIONS & NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION
LETTER

Please see Appendix J for the detailed report, and Appendix K for the letter.

VII. AGREED UPON PROCEDURES REPORT & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC BUDGET
REPORT

Please see Appendix L for the full report.



r o

TABLE OF APPENDICES

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF INTERCOLLEGIATE
YN 1 115 T TSR 10

THE BIG TEN CONFERENCE STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

................................................................................................................................................................................. 18
2021-22 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN ATHLETICS DEPARTMENT FINAL BUDGET REPORT ......oviiiiiiriiiiee e 26
2021-22 UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN ATHLETICS DEPARTMENT DEBT BALANCES & PAYMENTS REPORT ....cccvvviiriieceiineen. 27
2020-21 NCAA ACADEMIC PROGRESS RATE PUBLIC REPORT .......uutiiiiiiiteietrte e steee et e st e s e e e nnneee s 28
2012-15 COHORTS GRADUATION SUCCESS RATE REPORT ......ctiiiiiiitiiiiie sttt sttt sttt nne e 30
2021-22 STUDENT-ATHLETE IMAJOR ANALYSIS ... iutterurieiteeeeteeeteesre e et e st e st esase e steesane s e beesare s e nbeesareeebeenanesennenneeeas 31
COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES REVIEW BY UW SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT .....cvvveiiireenrreeeeaineeennes 34
2021-22 REPORT ON STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAL GOVERNANCE OF COLLEGE ATHLETICS .....cevvernvreeen. 36
2021-22 NCAA VIOLATION REPORT ....ciutiiitieiitie it sttt ettt sttt ettt et s bt s b e e st e e bt eear e e e beesabe e et e e naneeenneenneeaas 56
2021-22 NCAA OVERSIGHT CERTIFICATION LETTER ....uvtiiutieitiiiiee sttt ettt ettt ettt st st s et s s neenne e 57
AGREED UPON PROCEDURES REPORT & INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETIC BUDGET REPORT ......cviiiiieniiieiiee e 58



[
Appendix A

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON

STANDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIONAIL GOVERNANCE
OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

Introduction

At its June 1, 2014 meeting, the Big Ten Council of Presidents/Chancellors adopted “The Big Ten
Conference Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics”
(the "Conference Standards"). The Conference Standards embody the firm and common
commitment of each Big Ten Conference member institution to the core principle that
intercollegiate athletics must be properly aligned with the institution’s overall educational
mission. The University of Wisconsin-Madison fully supports the Conference Standards, and
adopts this document to demonstrate its commitment to the principles contained therein.
While many of the requirements of the Conference Standards are current University policy and
practice, the University is pleased to adopt this document and to fully implement the
Conference Standards. To the extent any existing policies or practices at the University are
contrary to the principles and standards contained in this document, this document controls.

Basic Principles

In accordance with the principles set forth by both the Conference Standards and the Big Ten
Handbook, the University affirms that intercollegiate athletics is an integral part of the
educational mission of the institution, and that accordingly, governance of intercollegiate
athletics should be consistent with, and not independent from, the governance applicable to
other University units and programs.

Organizational Governance Standards

The Chancellor of the University, subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the
University of Wisconsin System, and working within the constructs of the principles of shared
governance, has ultimate authority, responsibility, and accountability for the administration of
intercollegiate athletics. There are no exceptions to this authority, responsibility, or
accountability.

While retaining ultimate authority, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, responsibility
and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the Athletic
Director. There are no exceptions to this delegation.

The Athletic Board exercises the authority of the faculty as part of the University's shared-
governance system. The Athletic Board is 2 University Committee with membership, functions

10



and responsibilities set forth in the University’s Faculty Policies and Procedures.* The “authority
of the faculty” in the University's shared-governance system must be understood in the context
of the Chancellor being ultimately responsible for the institutional control of athletics.
However, Wisconsin law recognizes that chancellors are expected to consult with faculty in
discharging their responsibilities and recognizes the role of the faculty in governance.” In this
way, University faculty has the shared responsibility for academic and educational activities and
faculty personnel matters.’

Operational Standards for Athletics

The University reaffirms its policies and operational standards in the following areas: 1)
Academic Support; 2) Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance; 3) Admissions; 4)
Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct; 5) Medical and Athletic Training Services; and &) Cost
of Attendance.

1. Academic Support

Academic Success

The University is committed to providing student-athletes with academic support and
counseling (e.g., academic advising) that is adequate and appropriate for their progress toward
a degree and graduation.’ The personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the
primary concern of the University and the Athletic Board.

Academic Integrity

The University is committed to both the detection and prevention of (a) academic fraud and
misconduct, and (b) abusive use of independent study or clustering of student-athletes in
particular courses or majo rs.”

: Appendix 1, University of Wisconsin-Madison Faculty Policies and Procedures (“FPP"), Section 6.26.

* Wisconsin Statute Section 36.09(4).

* For more information regarding the Role of the Athletic Board, see Appendix 2, Faculty Document 2114, “Role of
the Athletic Board.”

* For a detailed review of the steps the University takes to provide student-athletes with academic support, see
Appendix 3, Office of Academic Services Handbook {“0OAS Handbook”), pgs. 25 (“Advisors™), 27 (“Learning
Specialists”), 29 ("Mentors"), 33 [“Individual Tutoring & Drop-In Study Groups"); see also Appendix 4, 2008-2009
Division 1 Athletics Certification Self-5tudy Instrument (“Self Study™), pgs. 33-35 (point 8) and pgs. 65-91
(“Operating Principle 2.2, Academic Support™); see also Appendix 5, 2013-2014 Badger Student-Athlete Handbook
and Planner (“5A Handbook™) pgs. 10 {("The Shared Responsibility of Academic Success™ and “5taff”), and 12
[“Services and Programs”™).

* For a detailed review of the steps the University takes to detect and prevent such academic problems, see
Appendix 3, OAS Handbook, pgs. 14 (“Academic Misconduct™), 20 ("Writing and Editing Guidelines™), 21 (“Ethical
Conduct™), 25 (“Advisors™), 36 (“Class Checking”), and 37 ("Directed 5Study”); see also Appendix 5, 5A Handbook,
pgs. 680-64, [“Academic Misconduct Guide for Students”); see also Appendix 9, Coaches Orientation Handbook
(“Coaches Handbook"), pgs. 61-64 (“Directed Study Policy™).

11



Prevention of iImproper Influence

In order to ensure that athletic academic support staff members are free from potential
improper influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the academic support
staff. Further, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the
academic support staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student
athlete. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the hiring or evaluation of
the performance of an academic support staff member, the ultimate authority for hiring and
supervising academic support staff will reside with the Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services.

In addition, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any faculty member. To
prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between the athletics
department staff and faulty regarding a student-athlete’s performance in class shall be
conducted through the Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, the staff members of
the Office of Academic Services, staff members of the Office of Compliance, or through the
Faculty Athletics Representative.®

In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services reports monthly to the Athletic Board, chaired by the Faculty Academics
Representative, regarding academic performance and support.

2. Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance

Compliance Success

The University is committed to the detection and prevention of breaches of institutional,
conference and NCAA rules.” The University does and will maintain appropriate and adequate
compliance staffing in order to maintain a compliant environment. In addition to the five full-
time employees devoted exclusively to compliance issues, compliance is considered to be a
shared responsibility at the University. That is, other athletics department personnel, the

f Coaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact campus instructional faculty or staff. See
Appendix 9, Coaches Handbook, pg. 7 (“Academic Services will make all contact with professors.”); see also,
Appendix 6, University of Wisconsin, Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, Compliance Education for New Staff
(“Compliance Education™) [As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources available and
warnad not to “directly contact individuals from the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.™).

7 For a detailed review of the steps the University takes to detect and prevent such breaches, see Appendix 4, Self
Study, pgs. 17-23; see also Appendix 5, 54 Handbook, pgs. 39-54 (“Big Ten/NCAA Rules & Regulations”); see also
Appendix 6, Compliance Education; see also Appendix 7, Compliance Manual, The University of Wisconsin Division
of Intercollegiate Athletics (“Compliance Manual™).

12



Faculty Athletics Representative, and the head coaches and administrators outside of the
athletic department who are responsible for the certification of student-athletes for financial
aid and practice and competition eligibility, are all expected to assume a primary role in
ensuring compliance with all rules.®

Prevention of iImproper Influence

In order to ensure that athletic compliance staff members are free from potential improper
influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper
influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic compliance staff.
Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic
compliance staff in any way. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the
hiring or evaluation of the performance of an athletic compliance staff member, the ultimate
authority for hiring and supervising athletic compliance staff will reside with the Associate
Athletic Director for Compliance. Communication between the athletics department staff and
such compliance constituents as the Registrar's Office, the Student Financial Services Office, Big
Ten and NCAA regarding the application of NCAA or Big Ten rules shall be conducted through
the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance or staff members of the Office of Compliance.

In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance
reports monthly, for oversight purposes, to the Chair of the Athletic Board, (which is chaired by
the Faculty Academics Representative), regarding institutional, Big Ten and NCAA compliance.
The Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance shall also make available any information or
reports that may be requested by the Vice Chancellor for Legal Affairs.

3. Admissions
Admission Decisions

The final decision-making authority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides in
the same office that admits other undergraduate applicants to the University, the Office of
Admissions and Recruitment (“Admissions”). Student-athletes progress through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants.® Admissions utilizes a holistic, competitive,
and selective review process. The goal is to recruit, admit, and enroll a high quality and diverse
freshman class. Admissions seeks students from groups that are underrepresented at the
University, including not only ethnic minorities, but international students, those from rural
Wisconsin farm backgrounds, first-generation college students, women and men who have

£ For more information regarding this shared responsibility, see Appendix &, Compliance Education; see also
Appendix 7, Compliance Manual pgs. & [“Institutional Control”) and 7 (*Compliance Philosophy™).

® For more information regarding admission of potential student-athletes, see Appendix 3, DAS Handbook, pgs. 46-
63 (“Admissions"); see also Appendix B, "Requirements and Expectations” document created and maintained by
the Office of Admissions; see also Appendix 9, Coaches Handbook pgs. 40-41 (“Admissions Information™).

13



I EEEEEEEEE———
served our country in the armed forces, and women interested in STEM (science, technology,
engineering, or math) majors. Admissions seeks students with special talent in music, dance,
art, athletics, or other areas of the University community.

Prevention of Improper Influence

In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff, and either Admissions or Admissions personnel from individual schools and
colleges regarding prospective student-athletes, shall be conducted through the Associate

Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the Office of Academic Services.™

4. Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct

University and Athletic Department Discipline

Under the authority of the University’s Division of Student Life, student-athletes shall be
subject to general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students at the
University, and shall be subject to the same procedures and sanctions.™ In addition to, and
independent from the process managed by the Division of Student Life, student-athletes are
further subject to the Student-Athlete Discipline Policy and to individual team rules.*

Prevention of Improper Influence

In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff and the Division of Student Life regarding student-athletes shall be conducted
through the Associate Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the Office
of Academic Services.™

** Coaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact Admissions. See Appendix 9, Coaches
Handbook, pg. 7 (“Academic Services will make all contact with the COffice of Admissions.”); see also, Appendix &,
Compliance Education (As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources available and
warned not to “directly contact individuals from the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.”).

" For more information regarding the application of general disciplinary rules of the University to student athletes,
see Appendix 5, 5A Handbook pgs. 60 (*Academic Misconduct Guide for Students”), and &4 | “Institutional
Discipline” and "“Viclations of University Regulations™).

** For a detailed explanation of the Student Athlete Discipline Policy, see 5A Handbook, pgs. 67-71 (“Athletic
Department Rules and Policies™) and pg. 72 (“Violations of Team Rules”).

* Coaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact the University's Division of Student Life. See
Appendix 6, Compliance Education (As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources
available and warned not to "directly contact individuals from the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.”).

14



5. Medical and Athletic Training Services

Medical Decisions

The University places priority on a student-athlete’s health over other considerations.* The
personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the primary concern of the
University and the Athletic Board. Health-related policies, procedures and protocols, including
those related to student-athlete concussions,” will be followed.

Medical Services to student-athletes at the University are offered in a medical model of care
under which the diagnosis and treatment of student-athletes is the ultimate responsibility of
the physicians employed by the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health,
administratively managed by its Division of Sports Medicine in the Department of Orthopedics
and Rehabilitation. The Athletic Department’s licensed athletic trainers practice under the
supervision of these physicians and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine. Each
Head Team Physician is appointed by the Chair of the Department of Orthopedics and
Rehabilitation. The Head Team Physician and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine
assume joint responsibility for quality assurance and the monitoring of student-athlete care on
an ongoing basis. A Medical Advisory Committee reviews and advises policies and procedures
related to the delivery of medical services to student-athletes. The committee consists of the
Chair of the Division of Sports Medicine, the Head Team Physician, Athletic Department
administrators, a representative from UW Hospital and Clinics and two members of the Athletic
Board.

Prevention of Improper Influence

The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition, resides
with the medical and athletic training staff.'® In order to ensure that medical and athletic
training staff are able to exercise their best professional judgment in caring for student-
athletes, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper
influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical or athletic training staff
who works with the coach’s own team. Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence

“gee Appendix 5, 5A Handbook, pg. 79 (“Sports Medicine Policy” and “Pregnancy Policy”); see also Appendix 10,
Competition and Practice Injury Management Plan; see also Appendix 11, Concussion Management Plan.

Ygee Appendix 10, Competition and Practice Injury Management Plan; see also Appendix 11, Concussion
Management Plan

* Coaches’ employment contracts each state that “[cJoach hereby understands and agrees that the final decision
regarding student-athlete participation in organized practices and/or competitions shall be made by the Division's
medical and training room staff,” and that “[t]his provision is essential to this Employment Agreement and
violation thereof may be considered just cause for termination.”

15



inappropriately any member of the medical or athletic training staff regarding the medical
treatment of a student athlete.

6. Cost of Attendance

Determination of Cost of Attendance

The process for determining the cost of attendance for student-athletes shall be essentially the
same process utilized for all students. Cost of attendance is determined by the Office of Student
Financial Aid."

Prevention of Improper Influence

Coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the Financial Aid staff in
order to adjust cost of attendance values to better serve recruiting or other athletically-related
interests.’® In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between
athletics department staff, and the Office of Student Financial Aid, shall be conducted through
the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance. The Director of Financial Aid should notify the
Chancellor or designee of any inappropriate communication relating to financial aid policy
received from any booster or official of the University of staff member in the Athletics
Department.

Concern Reporting

The University recognizes that ensuring compliance with the six areas of operational standards
set forth above necessarily requires that individuals have the ability to report concerns, free
from fear of retaliation, regarding whether these standards are being followed. Individuals can
and should report any concerns they have in relation to these standards to the Athletic
Director, the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance, Compliance staff or the Faculty
Athletics Representative, with the knowledge that no retaliation will occur as a result of voicing
such concerns. Indeed, the University encourages individuals to report any concerns they may
have.

Y Far the current breakdown of University Cost of Attendance, see Appendix 12, Office of 3tudent Financial Aid,
Undergraduate Cost of Attendance, 2015-16.

* Coaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact the University's Office of Student Financial Aid.
See Appendix 6, Compliance Education (As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources
available and warned not to “directly contact individuals from the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.”)

16



Ongoing Obligations

1. Annual Review

The University will conduct an annual internal review of the effectiveness of these Conference
Standards.

2. Reporting Reguirements

Following the internal annual review, the University will report to the Big Ten Conference Office
on how it is achieving compliance with the Conference Standards, and how it is taking action to
avoid governance-related problems in athletics. Within this report, the University will describe
to the Big Ten Conference Office any violation of the Conference Standards.”® The University
will report to the Big Ten Conference Office any revisions to this document, or any material
revisions to any incorporated Appendix, within thirty days of the adoption of any such revision.

** Within this requirement, it is understood that identifying and addressing violations in a timely manner is a
characteristic of a properly functioning compliance system—indicative of a system that is working as opposed to a
system that is malfunctioning. Accordingly, violations of these standards that are properly identified and addressed
in a timely manner are to be accounted for in the annual report within the context of demonstrating the
effectiveness of the standards. By contrast, violations that are indicative of systemic failures of the standards (eg.,
system malfunctions) are to be reported to the conference office within a timeframe that is contemporaneous to
the time at which such failures are discovered.

17



[
Appendix B

THE BIG TEN CONFERENCE

STANDARDS FOR SAFTEGUARDING
INSTITUTIONAL GOVEENANCE OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

Introduction

The Big Ten Conference’s history demonstrates that high-level athletic programs can be
successfully maintained at top research universities and advance the mission of such
nniversities. Incorporating athletic competition within the broader framework of higher
education also presents challenges. however, particularly given the visibility of intercollagiate
athletics and the passion it engenders. Good govemance of athleties within the structure of
each Big Ten Conference Member Institution 15 essential to manage these challenges. The
public’s trust in a Member Institution and the value of its intercollegiate athletics program are
eroded when the Institution fails to implement sound governance principles applicable to its
athletics programs. principles that are reflective of those applied to its academic programs and
consistent with the values of higher education.

While not alone in this regard, Big Ten Member Institutions have experienced lapses in
achieving sound governance of their athletic programs. All Member Instituticns are affected
when any Member Institution fails to maintain proper control over its intercollegiate athletics
programs. Recognizing this, the Big Ten Couneil of Presidents/Chancellors (COPC) directed
the Conference "to initiate an immediate review of the fundamental issues and systems
affecting intercollegiate athletics, inclnding the serious issues relating to control of athletics.™

Institutions that affiliate in an athletics conference should have commeon values and
conumen objectives. The Conference's attention to maintaining institntional integrity and
earning public trust predates the activities of the NCAA  which did not begin in earnest until
the 1960's. Members of the Big Ten Conference have traditionally come together to deal with
mmportant matters of commeon concem. For example, in 1972, the Conference formed an
Advisory Commission on the Integration of African-American Athletes to advance their
opportumties for participation in intercollegiate athletics at Member Instifutions. In 1992, the
Conference was a national leader in adopting measures and malking concerted efforts to
advance gender equity of student-athletes at the Member Institutions. The Conference has had
a long history of establishing academic standards governing eligibility of student-athletes, and
the Conference office and the Memiber Institutions have regularly interacted in a constructive
manner to improve practices at Member Instimitions, especially those involving academic and
compliance matters. Conference attention to the integrity of the zovernance of athletic
programs is clearly consistent with this tradition.

The Risks Associated with Failure to Implement Good Governance Policies

To be successful in their objectives, Member Institutions depend in large measure on
public trust and confidence. The failure effectively to govern any part or program of the
Institution, including athletics, nndermines public trust and confidence in the Institution.

18



Because of the high level of public interest in Big Ten sports, the risks of deparfures from
good governance procedures in athletics are significant, and the impact of such departures on
public trust and confidence may prove to be severe.

The loss of public trust in a Member Institution because of governance problems
affecting its athlefics programs has many negative consequences:

*  the reputations of the individual Member Institution and all other Member
Institutions in the Conference are damaged;

*  injury to reputation reduces support for athletics and other programs among the
Member Institution’s various constituencies (faculty, staff, students, alumi. donors,
fans, legislators, and the general public);

*  lack of public confidence invites outside infervention in the Member Institution’s
affairs;

+  student-athletes may lose opporfunities for lessons in teanvwork, effort, fair play,
and the pursuit of excellence becanse of program-related sanctions;

*  the Member Institution may suffer financial losses and additional costs when if is
difficult for the Institution to absorb them.

The visibility, competitiveness, and passion associated with intercollegiate athletics
combine to create a high-risk. high-reward environment which places great pressures on good
governance procedures. At Member Institutions, athletics departments are expected to
produce revenue streams through successful sports programs that will be sufficient to find
broad-based athletic programs without addifional institufional support. Fans and boosters have
high expectations and higher hopes, coaches and administrators seek the job security winning
programs provide, the extraordinary popularity of athletics grows every vear, and the financial
consequences of success and failure are very high, both individually and institutionally. Fans
or boosters. in pursuit of personal agendas or through a misplaced desire to “help™ their
favorite programs, are drawn fo interact with coaches and student-athletes in ways that may
circumvent ordinary procedures or violate the mules governing athletics. Some parficipants. by
their celebrity status, obtain concentrated power far beyond that held by other emplovees or
students. Successful coaches, major donors, and other persons of influence can seek to
circuntvent normal lines of authority and to exercise mndue and improper influence over the
actual responsible or accountable decision-makers. All of these problems are exacerbated if
authority over athletic decision-making is unclear or i3 not formalized in official institutional
policies.

For all of these reasons, the COPC proposes to address collectively the issues of integrity
in intercollegiate athletics by encouraging the adoption by Member Institutions of clearer
governance standards and to engage the Conference office to assist Member Institutions in
implementing these standards.

19



Basic Principles

The Big Ten Conference Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Govemnance of
Intercollegiate Athletics (Conference Standards) conform to the following basic principles:

1.  Conference policies for governance of athletics should reflect a common
commitment to integrity and good governance practice while recognizing the
autonony of the Member Institutions 1n fashioning their own organizational
5%1:21{&5 and allocafing authornity, responsibility, and accountability fo their own
officials.

2. Each Member Institution should have a set of governance standards that clearly
define the authority over, and responsibility and accountability for, the governance
of its athletic programs. Each Member Insfitution should be E_Epa:tﬁi to comply
fully with its own standards.

3. Intercollegiate athletics is an integral part of each Member Institution.
Accordingly, athletic governance should be consistent with, and not i
from the governance applicable to other university units and programs. For

. each Member Institution in the Big Ten provides that the President or

Chancellor of the Institution is the chief executive officer and is responsible and
accountable for the general adnunistration of the Instiution, subject to the
general oversight of a Govemning Board or a Systems Administration or both.
Absent specific policies to the contrary, the President or Chancellor should,
therefore. be the responsible and accountable officer for decisions made with
respect to athletics.

Organizational Governance Standards

Each Member Institution shall have written standards relating to the allocation of

authority, ﬁﬂsﬂ]ﬂlh’ and accountability for interco athf:late athletics af ifs Institution. These
standards prescribe the governance structure for athletics at the Member Institution. It is

anficipated that, at a mintmum_ the standards shall:

1. a Provide expressly or by general description, that the President or Chancellor,
subject to the general oversight of the Governing Board or Systems
Administration or both, and working within the constructs of the principles of
shared governance held by each Member Institution, has nltimate authority,

nsibility, and accountability for the administration of intercollegiate
etics,

b. State any exceptions to this authonty, responsibility, or accountability.
2. a. Provide, expressly or by general descrniption, that the President or Chancellor

has delegated authority. responsibility. and accountability for the
administration of the Athletics Department to the Athletics Director, and

b. State anv exceptions to that delegation.

20



3. State the role and responsibility of any other institutional officer, board, or
committee with Dr?ansibﬂiﬁ' for 1ssues relating to intercollegiate athletics,
including those officers, boards, or commuittees who or which play an advisory role
to the Athletics Director or to the President or Chancellor relating to intercollegiate

athletics.

4. Establish procedures to implement the expectation that those with authority and
responsibility to govern the athletic programs of the Member Institufion do so
without improper influence from others within or outside the Institution.

Operational Standards for Athletics

The integrity of the govemnance of a Member Instifution’s intercollegiate athletics
prﬂqg;am 15 threatened when improper influence is brought to bear on Member Institution
officials to make a decision that is not in the best interest of the Institution or, in more egregious
cases, that violates the Institution’s, the Conference’s, or the NCAA s mules. Certainly, the line
between providing advice or a 1ate advocacy on the one hand and undue or improper
influence on the other is not a % but, at one time or another, that line has been crossed
at vanious Member Institutions. Operational standards that address the exercise of improper
mfluence on i t decision-making affecting athletic programs at each Member Instifution
should reduce the nisk that such situations will recur.

Each Member Institotion shall, therefore, have written standards with respect to the
tion of its Athletics Department and units within the Institution that interact with its
. tics Department. The purpose of these operational standards shall, at a mininmm_ be to:

1. Assure that the unit that provides academic support services for student-athletes
operates without undue influence by Athletics Department staff. including coaching
staff. Each Institution’s operational standards shall, therefore, be designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from: (1) having direct responsibality for. or exercising undue or
mmproper influence over. the hirng or supervision of any member of
academic support staff, and (i1) a ting to influence inappropriately any
member of the acadenuc support staff or any faculty member in order to u%tain
or maintain the academic eligibility of a student-athlete.

b. Detect and prevent (i) academic fraud and misconduct, and (ii) abusive use of
independent study or clustering of student-athletes in particular courses or
majors.

c. Provide sudent-athletes with academic support and counseling that 1s adequate
and appropriate for their progress toward a degree and graduation.

d. Route communications between Athletics Department staff and faculty
regarding student-athletes” performance in classes through the Director of
Academic Support Services or his'her designee(s) or through the FAR

In addifion, good practice suggests that the Director of Academic Support Services
should report to an academic administrator outside the Athletics Department, such
as the Provost or FAR | either exclusively or as a dual report to that administrator
and the Athletics Director.

21



Assure that the units that enforce compliance with the rules and regulations of the
Member Institution. Conference, and NCAA have sufficient independence from
athletics staff to meet their responsibilities. Each Instifution’s operational standards
shall. therefore, be designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from (1) having direct responsibility for. or exercising undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the
athletics compliance staff. and (i1) attempting to influence mappropriately any
member of the athletics compliance staff

b. Detect and prevent breaches of the Institution’s, the Conference’s, and the
NCAA's mles.

c. Provide adequate and appropriate athletics compliance staffing for the
Instifution.

In addition. good practice suggests that. for oversight purposes. the Director of
Compliance should report to an administrator outside the Athletics Department,
such as the Campus Compliance/ Tntegrity Officer, General Counsel, or FAR. either
exclusively or as a dual report to that administrator and the Athletics Director.

Asgure that the admission process for student-athletes is essentially the same as that
for other applicants with special talents. Fach Institution’s operational standards
shall, therefore, be designed to:

a. Place final decision-making authority for the admission of student-athletes in
the same office that admits other lmgﬂrgradmte applicants to the Member
Institution.

b. Foute all commmunications regarding prospective student-athletes between
Athletics Department staff and the admissions office through the Athletics
Director or his/her designee(s).

In addition. good practice suggests that the Director of Admissions should notify
the President or Chancellor or his'her designee(s) of any inappropnate
communication relah.% to the adnussion of a prospective student-athlete receved
from any booster or official of the Member Institution or from any staff member in

the Athletics Department.

Assure that student-athletes are subject to %.{ disciplinary rules and codes of
conduct applicable to other students at the Member Institution.  Each Institution’s
operational standards shall, therefore. be designed to:

a. Apply such rules and codes, including the same procedures and sanctions, as

well as any Athlefics olicies applicable specifically to student-
athletes and any team miles, fo s -athletes.
b. Roufe commmmications regarding student-athletes between Athletics
Department staff and s disciplinary staff through the Athletics Director or
5
22



his'her designee(s).

In addition, good practice suggests that the Dean of Students or his/her designes
should notify the President or Chancellor or his'her designee(s) of any
mappropriate commmunication on behalf of a student-athlete in connection with a
disciplinary decision, especially if that comnmnication is from a booster or official
of the Member Institution or from any staff member in the Athletics Department.

5. Assure that the medical and athletic tramning staff who provide medical services to
student-athletes are able fo exercise their best professional judgment in caning for
student-athletes. Each Institufion’s operational standards shall, therefore, be
designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from (1) having direct responsibility for, or exercising undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical
or athletic training staff who works with the coach’s own team. and (i)
attempting to influence inappropriately any member of the medical or athletic
traiing staff regarding the medical treatment of a student-athlete.

b, Allow for effective implementation of and adherence to institutional policies,
procedures, and/or protocols regarding student-athlete concussions.

c. Place priority on the student-athlete’s health over other considerations.

In addition, good practice suggests that the Director of Sports Medicine Services
should report to an academic or medical adnindstrator outside the Athletics
Department. either exclusively or as a dual report to the adnunistrator and the
Athletics Director.

6. Assure that the process for determining an institntion’s cost of attendance for
student-athletes is essentially the same as that for all students, and that the vnit that
determines an institution’s cost of attendance values for financial aid purposes
operates without undue influence by Athletics Department staff, including coaching
staff. Each Institution’s operational standards shall, therefore. be designed to:

a. Prevent coaches from attempting to influence mappropriately any member of
the financial aid staff in order to adjust an institution’s cost of attendance values
to better serve recruiting or other athletically related inferests.

b. Route all conmmmications regarding financial aid between Athletics Department
staff and the financial aid office through the Athletics Director or his/her

designes(s).
In addition, g c%mctme suggests that the Director of Financial Aid should notify
the President or cellor or us'her designee(s) of any

mapproprate
communication relating to financial aid policy received from anv booster or official
of the Member Institution or from any staff member in the Athletics Department.

23



Enforcement of the Policies

The Member Institutions recognize that the infegrity of the governance of intercollegiate
athletics 1s important for the Conference as well as for intercolleguate athlefics generally and
that failures of one Member Institution affect the reputation of all Member Institutions.

Accordingly, the Member Institutions agree fo the following relating to enforcement of these
Cﬂﬂferen%smﬂdards: g ratng

1

Annual Review - Members. Each Member Institution will conduct an anmual
internal review of the effectiveness of the standards it has implemented in
fulfillment of these Conference Standards.

Reports to/by Conference.

a.

After conducting its internal review, each Member Institution will report
annually to the Conference on how it is achieving compliance with these
Conference Standards and taking action to avoid governance-related problems
in athletics. It will attach to that report copies of the standards it has
umplemented in fulfillment of these Conference Standards. Each Member
Institution will also submit copies of any revisions to its standards to the
Conference within thirty (30) days after their adoption.

After reviewing the reports from the Member Institutions, the Conference will
prepare a summary in which it will draw on the reports to provide information
to the Member Instifutions that will assist them in complying with these
Conference Standards. The Conference will submit the summary to the COPC
for review and discussion at a COPC meeting. The Conference summary may
include recommendations for changes in the Conference Standards for
consideration by the COPC.

Compliance.

a.

Each Member Institution will conply with the standards if has implemented in
fulfillment of these Conference Standards.

If the Conference receives a report or allegation that a Member Institution is not
in compliance with these Conference Standards, (1) it shall so advise the
Member Institution and require that it file a detailed response to the report or
allegation. including means to achieve compliance if the Member Institution
determines that the report or allegation is. in one or more respects, accurate; and
(11) it mav conduct its own investigation of the report or allegation. The
Member Institution will cooperate with the Conference’s investigation.

Each Member Institution will report to the Conference any violation of the
standards 1t has implemented in fulfillment of these Conference Standards.

24



4 Enforcement.

a. Informal Actions. The purpose of these Conference Standards 15 to enhance the
integrity of the governance of intercollegiate athletics among the Member
Instifutions. In the event a Member Institution does not achieve complete
compliance with these Conference Standards, the initial response should be that
the Conference and the Member Institution engage in constructive conversations
whose goal is greater compliance with these Conference Standards by the
Member Instifution.

b. Formal Actions. In cases where a Memiber Institution persistently fails to
comply with these Conference Standards. the Commissioner may recommend
corrective action to the COPC. The COPC may request information from the
Member Institution. which the Member Institution will provide, and the
Commnussioner, may, if so instructed by the COPC, conduct a more formal
hearing on the matter The COPC may adopt the Comnussioner's
recommendation or any other corrective action designed to enhance the Member
Institution’s compliance with these Conference Standards. Such corrective
action may include:

1. Financial penalties, including a reduction of Conference distributions.

1. Probation, under terms that reasonably relate fo comrecting the failure to
comply.

1i. Suspension from participation in a particular sport, or from membership in
general, for a stated period of time.

iv. Expulsion from membership.

The Big Ten Conference is a voluntarv association of Member Institutions. The
Conference Bylaws provide that suspension of membership, expulsion from the
Conference, or placement on probation each requires a vote of at least 70% of the
Membership. It 15 extraordinanly unlikely that a Member Institution would be
expelled unless the failure to comply with these standards was so persistent and
serions that it indicated the Member Institution no longer subscribes to the common
values and objectives of the Conference and the other Member Institutions.

5. Effective Date

These Conference Standards were approved by the COPC on June 1, 2014 effective for
the Conference and all Member Institutions on August 1, 2015. Between the approval
date and the effective date, the Conference will assist each Member Institution in
preparing to comply fully with the Conference Standards as of the effective date.

25



Appendix C

2021-22 Wisconsin Athletics Budget Report

Please note that the figures presented below represent the University’s accounting practices. Figures
included in Appendix L conform to NCAA reporting requirements.

2021-22
Budget Actual
REVENUE
Concessions & Catering $2,461,000 $2,646,932
Conference Distributions $49,850,000 | $60,238,204
Events $2,475,000 $1,444,423
Gift Funds $23,800,000 $5,470,792
Multi Media $13,390,000 | $17,304,201
Other Revenue $7,455,017 | $11,658,976
Post Season $2,600,000 $2,728,797
Ticket Sales $37,145,000 $36,253,660
Transfers to Institution ($10,177,300) | ($10,053,872)
TOTAL REVENUE | $128,998,717 | $127,692,113
EXPENSE
Salaries & Fringe Benefits $56,030,713 | $55,255,832
Debt Service $10,180,330 $10,727,127
Financial Aid $12,889,986 | $11,546,553
Operational Expenses $46,875,473 | $46,106,263
Post Season Participation $3,000,000 $3,889,410
TOTAL EXPENSE | $128,976,502 | $127,525,185
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) $22,215 $166,928
Capital Projects $14,000,000 | $11,430,208
Ending Cash Balance $204,438

(Unrestricted Fund Balance)

26




Appendix D

2021-22 University of Wisconsin Athletics Department Debt Balances & Payments Report

Project

Environmental Management Center
Camp Randall Stadium Renovation
(2004)

Crew House

Nielsen Tennis Stadium Floor
University Ridge Golf Course
Hockey/Swimming Facility

Student Athlete Performance
Center

Camp Randall South End Zone
Renovation (2022)

Kohl Center Addition & Renovation

Total Debt Service - GO Bonds

Qutstanding Debt, as of 6/30/22

27

8,791
13,195,767

840,094
19
70,290
6,917,712

44,295,127

25,920,466
5,332,423

96,580,689

Debt Service
Payment FY ‘22

9,993
6,229,771

456,164
3

13,311
525,985

2,580,235

880,270
31,396

10,727,128



endix E

A

7 jo 1 98eg

“M3LA3T ISPUTL 5T B[R Yy 5,231 180 S3I0Ua(T 1

-Burpuad s11sanbar matesm Aeuad sumonmmsm 3T o1

“paATEM U330 SEY ANIqIEeur noseasisog 5 WEA AU 5

“pasodun 3q sou 1snm Ajeuad 21 pUR UONIPUOD 2 153 01 PR} WEA 31 Tasamol] ‘paamm Aeuonipuod Lsnotard sesm 1o deuad e 01103(gns stmea) 2T a

“pastEm Taq 5oy AEnad om] [aas 5 RS T g

‘paaresm wa2q sey Opevad aug [2A2 5 WE 3T c

URIRADIGIT JMIEpEIE PAENSIOWAD 5 WES] 1 01 3np nonnadures uoseasisod 1op AqrETsur o1 103(qns 10w 5T e 191 Sa10UA(] ¢

“ANEY 5530005 LONENPRIS 5 WE [ PUE S32IM05AI MIIPNIS PUE SINSME TEUONmnsuT uo paseq uonnadures uosessisod 1of Amqrseur o 103lqns 1ou 5T mmea] 191 531003 c

-pasoduny aq mou 15nm Leuad 21 pUe TONIPUOI 31 133U 01 PITR] WEAN A1 ‘1Raamor] ‘paarem [euonrpucd Asnoraard sem 1em Aieuad e o1 123(qns ose st mea ayT, z

“Terod UONIATOD BIER Y 1 UNPLM qEl soday a1 uo paIRIe] JUSWNI0D ARWWNG [RI13U20) JY 301 W pedo] aq dewm Aeusd uosess zonoend pue Burderd :1p uo vonemopm aywadg 1

8/6 086 086 786 96 6.6 TOZ-T0T WOZ-|0T 186 95 (£0g) 192305 su3)y
816 1.6 ELE EE6 696 vi6 TOETOT WOS-H0Y 686 L6 (z67) PRIl sl
96 0.6 186 EL6 6 ci6 T0g-P0L TWO0T-H0G 000°T L66 (5.) Burpsazm, U274
586 86 986 186 986 086 T0L P09 WOL-H09 000°T 76 (ogg) smuag suap(
186 186 886 986 <86 936 TOSOY BOS-T0F 096 286 (1eT) St

= pue SUTIITME 5 U3

; . (6c.

586 £66 166 985 188 086 TOF-P0E WO-B0E 000°T 186 faxpog 307 ST
886 <86 066 066 286 886 T06 108 TWO0T-H0G 000°T 0007 (pog) 7100 SURI
YN 656 695 16 196 706 T0L P09 WOOT-R0G 86 766 (£67) TEqeng

. y lg1e)

86 0gs cgs BE6 086 £86 TOEPOT WOE-ROT £L6 9.6 Ammory ssory SUY

: ; (z58)

995 95 L6 EL6 998 896 TOE-POT W09-1H0S <z FL6 [PqEseg SEIIT

£ WA - 1odg £g
(IPmoog A T uorsAIpqng suopmpsu suodg [y uque | wodg upgm
-uop) T worstAIQ &aﬂﬁﬁwnu [Mog [Eqon g aeasy suopmpsuy Mqng | [UOSIAIINY |y smusarag | squey spusassg | BV TC0Z0T07 | MV reaAnmiy (\) 1a0dg

‘TBUI] SE EIED JTUISPEDE IIa1]) PATJIIA0 SAEY 1B1]) spenbs [[B uo paseq a1e s3)e83188e [euone) sdnoiBqns palou 10] safermar YJy wods-£q siussardal peyy Surmoo] syl

[a10p sny1 131)p apvw pipp 03 sabupys Aup 122721 Jou saop 1odat s1yy ul uonpuwLcful 3yJ ‘Joquds . up Aq paapoipul
24D pup passauddns uaaq aADY S3I3[YID-JUIPTIS Lama) 10 3a4y] BuIuIDiuod §1739 pipp ‘suonpinbas Ovalid [piapa] Jo uonpiaidiziul (s, VgH ) 5,19V Aovalld pup spybry [puonponpg
Ao,y ayy ynm aouppaoIop uf “sdnoub Liods uipLaD ulylm saz1s a]dwps Jjows aApy [jus Abw sponbs awos sipad S1wapoop 1nof 4of st 1iodad s1y3 Ul pauIpiuod uonpuLioful [Ty 13107

*s1eak JTmapeIE T7-070Z PUE 0Z-6T07 ‘6T-8T0C ‘8T-LTOZ 31 10] UOTMNSUT a1 £q PanTmqns e1ep (YY) 218y Ssa1801d JIWapedy ] UOISIAIQ VDN U0 paseq st uodat sty

zzZoz/oz/ico moday Jo s UOSTPR[A-UISTDISIA J0 AISIAATIN) JUOTMNSU]

poday [euonmpsu] ey ssaI80.1d dIWIPLIY 1Z0T - 020T I UOISIAIQ VVON

28



7 Jo g ageq

“MATA3T IAPUN ST MEP P 5,2 19 SA0UR(T 4
-Burpuad stisanbar marem Ajeuad suonmmsur agy o
‘pastes U33q S9U AqISIEUL uoseasiseg s WeA AT
-pasodimr aq sou 1snm Aeuad A1) pUE TONIPITOD ST 1230 01 P3{TR] MES] 31 ‘TRaamot] ‘pasTes A[euonrpuod A7snotaand ses 1em Areusd v o1 10alqns st mea sy g
"pasTes Usaq sy Afeuad om] [353 5 WE31 AL
“pasTEm Uaaq seY Aeuad aup) [ans 5, WEA ST c
TUARAC AT JMIApEIE PAUENSUOMRP § e 317 01 anp uonnaduo: uoseasisod 1oy AmqrEn=ur o 123(gns 1ou 51 we=1 1@ sa10u3(] v
31Ty $53000§ UONENPRIL) 5 WE 3 PUE S32MOS3I UIPMS PUR s2U3[{e TPUONMRAS U0 paseq uonnadwon uoseasisod 1op maidiaur o1 123(qus 100 5T wea1 19 salouaq o
“pasoduT aq mou 150m Afeuad 21 pUR TOTIPIOD 31 133U 01 P3{TE] R3] 31 ‘Radmot] ‘pastes Aeuontpuod Afsnotaard sesm jem Aieusd e 01 10alqns os[e ST meEa] ] z
-Teurod uonSE[03 BIEp JV A1) UMl qel siioday A1 U0 pElElo] IR mniop ARG [BI8Uas) JY 311 W pa1eao] aq Aem Aeusd noseas sanaend pue Suderd s uo nonemmopm Jgmads 1

p3-0) - Mods Ag

T66 886 266 £66 686 066 0T 08-W0L 000°T £66 (T¥E) 323005 5EaWOA
<36 286 986 586 286 86 T0gT0S 30,109 0007 066 (rrg) peIL smamop
056 086 166 766 286 636 06108 mo0T-M06 000°T 000°T [Eadson w.ﬁﬁmw
£66 626 166 766 066 166 0109 m0g-moc 000°T 266 {c0g) smmag smamopy
266 66 £66 £66 £66 £66 06108 mO0T-T06 0007 000°T (6T) Sumar pue
Funmummg 5 Tamopy
836 cg6 826 066 956 86 06108 mo0T-T06 000°T 000 (00g) reayes
q g . (3]
866 a6 266 685 066 686 TOr-T0E B0E-W0z 8.6 286 foypop 397 szomo
<66 166 <66 166 £66 €66 06708 WO0T-B06 0007 0007 {897) 710D suawopy
£66 166 886 166 836 066 T0LT09 T0L109 166 166 (gg) Brmmoy smamopy
) } . . (gcg) Anunody
266 (86 166 266 836 066 T06-T03 WOOT-T06 000°T 000 ssory sumas,
€36 186 86 186 186 £86 TOr-T0E D00 8.6 186 — w.ammw
5, uamopy - 1edg &g
(reqo0g IPANS | uommpqng suopmnsuy sutodg [y urgus | 310dg urmEa . i :
woN) 1 aoRIAI azﬂ_._ﬂw._ R0 | og fequoos atestig suonmIpsu NGNG | TUOSIMATY | e ovuasasg | yuey smuasasg | AV FOT020T | WAV weadnmig () vodg

poday [euonmnsu] ALY ssAIB0.1d JIWRIPLIY 12T - 020T I UOISIAIJ VVON

Zz0z/0z/c0 “uoday Jo 21eQg

UOSTPE {-UTSTO0STAY JO AITSIAATI) TUOTITONSU]

29



Appendix F

Graduation Success Rate Report

2012 - 2015 Cohorts: University of Wisconsin-Madison

Men's Sporis

Sport
Baseball
Basketball
CC/Track
Fencing
Football
Golf
Gymnastics
Ice Hockey
Lacrosse
Mixed Rifle
Skiing
Soccer
Swimming
Tennis
Volleyball
Water Polo
Wrestling

Men's Non-NCAA
Sponsor. Sports

GSR
82
86
88
80
81

73
86
100

88

Fed Rate
69
70
79
80
57

56
57
91

79

Women's Sports
Sport
Basketball
Bowling
CC/Track
Crew/Rowing
Fencing
Field Hockey
Golf
Gymnastics
W. Ice Hockey
Lacrosse
Skiing
Soccer
Softball
Swimming
Tennis
Volleyball
‘Water Polo

‘Women's Non-NCAA Sponsor.

Sports

30

GSR Fed Rate
100 75
91 79
97 91
100 90
96 95
100 84
100 76
100 77
a9 67
100 78



|
Appendix G

UW Student-Athlete Majors vs. UW Student Body Majors (as of 1/6/23)
UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS

Undergraduate Major

#S-A S-A #UW

Majors* % Majors*

Agricultural and Applied Economics 1 0.14% 46 0.13%
| Agricultural Business Management 5 0.70% 57 0.16%
Agronomy 2 0.28% 23 0.07%
| Animal Sciences 3 0.42% 149 0.42%
Anthropology 1 0.14% 65 0.18%
Art 6 0.84% 214 0.61%
Biochemistry (CALS) 5 0.70% 279 0.79%
Biochemistry (L&S) 4 0.56% 238 0.68%
Biological Systems Engineering** 4 0.56% 75 0.21%
| Biology (CALS) 18 2.53% 532 1.51%
Biology (L&S) 6 0.84% 622 1.77%
| Biomedical Engineering 13 1.83% 734 2.08%
Botany 1 0.14% 27 0.08%
| Business: Accounting 8 1.13% 367 1.04%
Business: Actuarial Science 3 0.42% 217 0.62%
| Business: Analytics 2 0.28% 148 0.42%
Business: Finance, Investment and Banking 31 4.36% 1,392 3.95%
| Business: Information Systems 4 0.56% 158 0.45%
Business: International Business 3 0.42% 206 0.59%
| Business: Management and Human Resources 7 0.98% 360 1.02%
Business: Marketing 18 2.53% 808 2.29%
| Business: Operations and Technology Mgmt. 6 0.84% 123 0.35%
Business: Real Estate and Urban Land Econ. 18 2.53% 607 1.72%
| Business: Risk Management and Insurance 8 1.13% 232 0.66%
Business: Supply Chain Management 5 0.70% 219 0.62%
| Chemical Engineering 4 0.56% 547 1.55%
Chemistry 1 0.14% 195 0.55%
| Chinese 1 0.14% 28 0.08%
Civil Engineering 15 211% 379 1.08%
| Communication Arts 29 4.08% 615 1.75%
Communication Sciences and Disorders (EDU) 1 0.14% 19 0.05%
| Communication Sciences and Disorders (L&S) 2 0.28% 193 0.55%
Community and Environmental Sociology 1 0.14% 44 0.12%
| Community and Nonprofit Leadership 6 0.84% 104 0.30%
Computer Engineering 2 0.28% 624 1.77%
| Computer Sciences 15 211% 2,209 6.27%
Conservation Biology 1 0.14% 168 0.48%
| Consumer Behavior and Marketplace Studies 51 717% 761 2.16%
Data Science 13 1.83% 914 2.60%
| Economics 28 3.94% 1,123 3.19%
Education Studies 2 0.28% 43 0.12%
| Electrical Engineering 6 0.84% 435 1.24%
Elementary Education** 7 0.98% 226 0.64%

31



Undergraduate Major

Engineering Mechanics 3 0.42% 219 0.62%
| Engineering Physics 2 0.28% 36 0.10%
English 2 0.28% 280 0.80%
| Environmental Sciences 5 0.70% 90 0.26%
Environmental Studies 6 0.84% 220 0.62%
| French 1 0.14% 41 0.12%
Genetics and Genomics 1 0.14% 359 1.02%
| Geography 1 0.14% 70 0.20%
Geological Engineering 1 0.14% 28 0.08%
| Geology and Geophysics 2 0.28% 43 0.12%
German 2 0.28% 20 0.06%
| Global Health 2 0.28% 330 0.94%
Health Promotion and Health Equity 24 3.38% 240 0.68%
| History 4 0.56% 308 0.87%
Human Development and Family Studies 14 1.97% 338 0.96%
| Industrial Engineering 2 0.28% 317 0.90%
Interior Architecture** 5 0.70% 78 0.22%
| International Studies 6 0.84% 256 0.73%
Journalism 3 0.42% 474 1.35%
| Kinesiology** 38 5.34% 207 0.59%
Landscape and Urban Studies 1 0.14% 38 0.11%
| Latin American, Caribbean and Iberian Studies 1 0.14% 17 0.05%
Legal Studies 11 1.55% 317 0.90%
| Life Sciences Communication 22 3.09% 166 0.47%
Mathematics 2 0.28% 490 1.39%
| Mechanical Engineering 12 1.69% 1,217 3.46%
Microbiology 3 0.42% 102 0.29%
| Molecular and Cell Biology 1 0.14% 86 0.24%
Music 1 0.14% 123 0.35%
| Neurobiology 14 1.97% 678 1.93%
Nuclear Engineering 1 0.14% 59 0.17%
| Nursing* 6 0.84% 317 0.90%
Nutritional Sciences** 4 0.56% 121 0.34%
| Personal Finance 48 6.75% 424 1.20%
Philosophy 2 0.28% 142 0.40%
| Physical Education** 6 0.84% 28 0.08%
Political Science 19 2.67% 881 2.50%
| Psychology 40 5.63% 1,418 4.03%
Rehabilitation Psychology 13 1.83% 98 0.28%
| Social Welfare 1 0.14% 132 0.37%
Sociology 6 0.84% 197 0.56%
| Spanish 5 0.70% 308 0.87%
Special Education 1 0.14% 64 0.18%
| Statistics 5 0.70% 242 0.69%
Textiles and Fashion Design 4 0.56% 96 0.27%
| Wildlife Ecology 2 0.28% 99 0.28%
Zoology 1 0.14% 116 0.33%

80.8%




Note: As students with more than one major are counted as one unit in each major, the total number of majors

may exceed the total number of students. Students who have not declared majors are not included in these
calculations.

**Number of majors includes students who are declared in pre-majors.

A This number represents only the majors listed above. The total number of undergraduate students with a
major equals 30,107.

33



Appendix H

UNIVERSITY OF | Office of Internal Audit
WISCONSIN SYSTEM 780 Regent Street, Suite 200

. . Madison, Wisconsin 53715
(608) 263-4397
wisconsin.edu/offices/audit/

November 21, 2022

Chris McIntosh, Director of Athletics
University of Wisconsin—Madisen
Kellner Athletic Office Building
1440 Monroe Street

Madison, W 53711

Deear Athletic Director Melntosh:

We have completed an internal audit of Nafional Collegiate Athletic Association (NCA4) Compliance at
the University of Wisconsin—Madison (UTW-Madison) for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022,
Oner andit was conducted in conformance with the Intarnational Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing. While perfornung this audit, we did not identify any andit comments.

This commnumication is intended solely for the information of management of UW-Madisen and TTW
System Administration. This restriction is not intended to linut the distribution of this communication,
which upon final issuance, is a matter of public record.

We greatly appreciate the assistance and cooperation of staff within the TTW-Madison Athletic Department,
who provided information during the performance of this andit.

Best regards,

Qovmad (e pome

Amanda Nehmer
Director, Office of Internal Audit

[ Jenmifer Mnookin, Chancellor
Eatie Smith. Senior Associate Athletic Director & Sr. Woman Administrator
Toel Ott, Director of Compliance
Brady Minter, Associate Director of Compliance
Fob Cramer, Interim Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration
David Murphy, Associate Vice Chancellor for Finance
David Honma, Assistant Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration, Controller

34



BACKGROUND

The Office of Internal Andit performed an andit of NCA4 Compliance in accordance with the 2023 Audit
Flan, as approved by the Andit Committes of the Board of Regents.

The objective of this audit was to evaluate the TUW-Madison Athletic Department’s compliance program in
accordance with the NCA4 2021-22 Division I Manual (manual) for selected topics.

Our audit incloded the recommended procedures suggested by the comprehensive program in the NCAA
Division I Compliance Audit Guide published by the Association of College and University Aunditors
(ACTJA). This comprehensive program provides a general wnderstanding of the compliance system and
prescribes substantive work invelving testing and data examination. Cur procedures tested the following
compliance areas that we determuned were high risk from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022:
Governance and Organization

Financial Aid Administration

Continning Eligibility

Transfer Elizibility

Recmiting — Off Campus

Recmiting — On Campus

Playing and Practice Seasons

Camps and Clinics

Amatenrism

REPORTING INTERNAL AUDIT RESULTS

The completion and results of the audit will be communicated in an executive summary to the Andit
Committee of the Board of Regents.

We did not identify any andit conmments during our andit.

Report Control #2023-17-MSN Page |2

35



[
Appendix 1

Standards for safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics
University of Wisconsin- Madison's Annual Report for 2021-22

As required by the Big Ten Conference and University of Wisconsin-Madison’s Standards for
Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics (“Standards”), the University
has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of the Standards. The time period covered
by this review is August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022. A copy of the University’s Standards
(Appendix omitted), is included with this Annual Report as Exhibit 1.

Organizational Governance Standards

The allocation of authority, responsibility, and accountability for intercollegiate athletics at the
University remains as stated in the University’s Standards. The Chancellor of the University,
subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System,
and working within the constructs of the principles of shared governance, continues to have
ultimate authority, responsibility, and accountability for the administration of intercollegiate
athletics. While retaining ultimate autharity, the Chancellor has delegated the autharity,
responsibility, and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to
the Athletic Director. The University’s Athletic Board continues to exercise the authority of the
faculty as part of the University's shared governance system.

Operational Standards

In order to determine whether the University achieved compliance with the Standards, the Office
of Legal Affairs reviewed the Standards with the following members of the University community,
who would be in a position to verify such compliance and identify any deviations from the
reguirements of the Standards:

* Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, Mr. Doug Tiedt;

* Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance & Senior Woman Administrator, Ms.
Katie Smith;

* Associate Vice Provost & University Registrar, Mr. Scott Owczarek;

# Director of Admissions and Recruitment, Mr. André E. Phillips;

# Dean of Students, Ms. Christina Olstad;

* Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine, Mr. Michasl Mall;

# Head Team Physician, Dr. David T. Bernhardt; and

# Director of the Office of Student Financdial Aid, Ms. Helen Faith.

Each of these members of the University community has provided a written statement comparing

their own knowledge and experiences with the reguirements of the Standards. These written

36



statements have also been attached to this Annual Report as Exhibit 2. During these reviews, no
instances of potential non-compliance during the year under review were identified.

Conclusion

Based upon our review of the statements contained in Exhibit 2, we believe that the University is
achieving compliance with the Standards and taking action to avoid governance-related problems
in intercollegiate athletics. The University will remain vigilant regarding continuing compliance,
and will report any revisions to its Standards document to the Conference within thirty days of

the adoption of any such revision.

— DS ggned By
[ Juunifur Misebin 1/11/2023
Jennifer Mnookin, Chancellor (date)

—IJIJLJSI‘.:'L'II g,
[ ( L L 1/11/2023
Chris Mcintosh, Director of Athletics (date)
— DucaSegned By
[ o Marie §luetlog 1/13/2023
Ann Sheeshy, Athletic Board Chair (date)
37



Exhibit 1

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON

STAMDARDS FOR SAFEGUARDING INSTITUTIOMNAL GOVERNANCE
OF
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

Introduction

At its June 1, 2014 meeting, the Big Ten Council of Presidents/Chancellors adopted “The Big Ten
Conference Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics”
(the “Conference Standards”). The Conference Standards embody the firm and common
commitment of each Big Ten Conference member institution to the core principle that
intercollegiate athletics must be properly aligned with the institution’s overall educational
mission. The University of Wisconsin-Madison fully supports the Conference Standards, and
adopts this document to demaonstrate its commitment to the principles contained therein.
While many of the requirements of the Conference Standards are current University policy and
practice, the University is pleased to adopt this document and to fully implement the
Conference Standards. To the extent any existing policies or practices at the University are

contrary to the principles and standards contained in this document, this document controls.

Basic Principles

In accordance with the principles set forth by both the Conference Standards and the Big Ten
Handbook, the University affirms that intercollegiate athletics is an integral part of the
educational mission of the institution, and that accordingly, governance of intercollegiate
athletics should be consistent with, and not independent from, the governance applicable to
ather University units and programs.

Organizational Governance Standards

The Chancellor of the University, subject to the general oversight of the Board of Regents of the
University of Wisconsin System, and working within the constructs of the principles of shared
governance, has ultimate authority, responsibility, and accountability for the administration of
intercollegiate athletics. There are no exceptions to this authority, responsibility, or
accountability.

While retaining ultimate authority, the Chancellor has delegated the authority, responsibility
and accountability for the day-to-day administration of intercollegiate athletics to the Athletic
Director. There are no exceptions to this delegation.

The Athletic Board exercises the authority of the faculty as part of the University's shared-
governance system. The Athletic Board is a University Committee with membership, functions

38



and responsibilities set forth in the University's Faculty Policies and Procedures. The “authority
of the faculty” in the University’s shared-governance system must be understood in the context
of the Chancellor being ultimately responsible for the institutional control of athletics.
However, Wisconsin law recognizes that chancellors are expected to consult with faculty in
discharging their responsibilities and recognizes the role of the faculty in governance.? In this
way, University faculty has the shared responsibility for academic and educational activities and
faculty personnel matters.3

Operational Standards for Athletics

The University reaffirms its policies and operational standards in the following areas: 1)
Arcademic Support; 2) Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance; 3) Admissions; 4)
Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct; 5) Medical and Athletic Training Services; and 6) Cost
of Attendance.

1. Academic Support

Academic Success

The University is committed to providing student-athletes with academic support and
counseling (e_g., academic advising) that is adequate and appropriate for their progress toward
a degree and graduation * The personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the

primary concern of the University and the Athletic Board.
Academic Integrity

The University is committed to both the detection and prevention of (a) academic fraud and
misconduct, and (b) abusive use of independent study or clustering of student-athletes in
particular courses or majors.3

! Appendix 1, University of Wisconsin-Madison Faculty Policies and Procedures [“FPP"), Section 6.26.

* Wisconsin Statute Section 36.053(4).

* For more information regarding the Role of the Athletic Board, see Appendix 2, Faculty Document 2114, “Role of
the Athletic Board.”

* For a detailed review of the steps the University takes to provide student-athletes with academic support, see
Appendix 3, Office of Academic Services Handbook {“0AS Handbook”), pgs. 25 (“Advisors”), 27 (“Learning
Specialists”), 20 [*Mentors”), 33 {“Individual Tutoring & Drop-In Study Groups”); see also Appendix 4, 2008-2009
Division 1 Athletics Certification Self-Study Instrument [ “Self Study™), pgs. 23-35 {point 8) and pgs. 65-91
{“Operating Principle 2.2, Academic Support”]; see also Appendix 5, 2013-2014 Badger Student-Athlete Handbook
and Planner ("534 Handbook™) pgs. 10 (*The Shared Responsibility of Academic Success™ and “3taff”), and 12
[“Services and Programs").

* For a detailed review of the steps the University takes to detect and prevent such academic problems, see
Appendix 3, 043 Handbook, pgs. 14 [“Academic Misconduct”), 20 [“Writing and Editing Guidelines”), 21 [“Ethical
Conduct™), 25 {"Advisors®), 36 [(“Class Checking”), and 37 {"Directed Study”™); see also Appendix 5, SA Handbook,
pgs. 60-64, [“Academic Misconduct Guide for Students”); see also Appendix 3, Coaches Orientation Handbook
{“Coaches Handbook”), pgs. 61-&4 (“Directed Study Policy”).

39



Prevention of Improper influence

In arder to 2nsure that athletic academic support staff members are free from potential
improper influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the academic support
staff. Further, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the
academic support staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student
athlete. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the hiring or evaluation of
the perfarmance of an academic support staff member, the ultimate authority for hiring and
supervising academic support staff will reside with the Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services.

In addition, coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any faculty member. To
prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between the athletics
department staff and faulty regarding a student-athlete’s performance in class shall be
conducted through the Associate Athletic Director for Student Services, the staff members of
the Office of Academic Services, staff members of the Office of Compliance, or through the
Faculty Athletics Representative.®

In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Associate Athletic Director for Student
services reports monthly to the Athletic Board, chaired by the Faculty Academics

Representative, regarding academic performance and support.

2. Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance

Compliagnce Success

The University is committed to the detection and prevention of breaches of institutional,
conference and MCAA rules.” The University does and will maintain appropriate and adequate
compliance staffing in arder to maintain a compliant environment. In addition to the five full-
time employees devoted exclusively to compliance issues, compliance is considered to be a

shared responsibility at the University. That is, other athletics department personnel, the

£ Coaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact campus instructional faculty or staff. See
Appendix 9, Coaches Handbook, pg. 7 (“Academic Services will make all contact with professors.”); see also,
Appendix 6, University of Wisconsin, Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, Compliance Education for Mew 5taff
{“Compliance Education”) |As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources available and
warned not to “directly contact individuzals from the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.”).

? For a detailed review of the steps the University takes to detect and prevent such breaches, see Appendix 4, Self
Study, pgs. 17-23; see also Appendix 5, 54 Handbook, pgs. 39-54 (“Big Ten/NCAA Rules & Regulations”); see also
Appendix 6, Compliance Education; see alse Appendi: 7, Compliance Manual, The University of Wisconsin Division
of Intercollegiate Athletics (“Compliance Manual®).

40



Faculty Athletics Representative, and the head coaches and administrators outside of the
athletic department who are responsible for the certification of student-athletes for financial
aid and practice and competition eligibility, are all expected to assume a primary role in
ensuring compliance with all rules ®

Prevention of Improper Influence

In order to ensure that athletic compliance staff members are free from potential improper
influence, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper
influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic compliance staff.
Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic
compliance staff in any way. While a coach may have input or be otherwise involved in the
hiring or evaluation of the performance of an athletic compliance staff member, the ultimate
authority for hiring and supervising athletic compliance staff will reside with the Associate
Athletic Director for Compliance. Communication between the athletics department staff and
such compliance constituents as the Registrar’'s Office, the Student Financial Services Office, Big
Ten and NCAA regarding the application of NCAA or Big Ten rules shall be conducted through

the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance or staff members of the Office of Compliance.

In addition to reporting to the Athletic Director, the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance
reports monthly, for oversight purposes, to the Chair of the Athletic Board, (which is chaired by
the Faculty Academics Representative), regarding institutional, Big Ten and NCAA compliance.
The Assistant Athletic Director for Compliance shall also make available any information or
reports that may be requested by the Vice Chancellor for Legal Affairs.

3. Admissions
Admission Decisions

The final decision-making authority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides in
the same office that admits other undergraduate applicants to the University, the Office of
Admissions and Recruitment (“Admissions"). Student-athletes progress through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants.” Admissions utilizes a holistic, competitive,
and selective review process. The goal is to recruit, admit, and enroll a high quality and diverse
freshman class. Admissions seeks students from groups that are underrepresented at the
University, including not only ethnic minorities, but international students, those from rural
Wisconsin farm backgrounds, first-generation college students, women and men who have

¥ For more information regarding this shared responsibility, see Appendix &, Compliance Education; ses also
Appendix 7, Compliance Manual pgs. & [“Institutional Control™) and 7 (“Compliance Philosophy™).

* For more information regarding admission of potential student-athletes, see Appendix 3, 0AS Handbook, pes. 46-
63 (“Admissions™); see also Appendix 8, “Requirements and Expectations” dooument created and maintained by
the Office of Admissions; see also Appendix %, Coaches Handbook pgs. 40-41 |“Admissicns Information”].

41



served our country in the armed forces, and women interested in STEM (science, technology,
engineering, or math) majors. Admissions seeks students with special talent in music, dance,
art, athletics, or other areas of the University community.

Prevention of Improper Influence

In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff, and either Admissions or Admissions personnel from individual schools and
colleges regarding prospective student-athletes, shall be conducted through the Associate
Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the Office of Academic Services 2@

4. Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct

University and Athletic Department Discipline

Under the authority of the University's Division of Student Life, student-athletes shall be
subject to general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students at the
University, and shall be subject to the same procedures and sanctions.*? In addition to, and
independent from the process managed by the Division of Student Life, student-athletes are

further subject to the Student-Athlete Discipline Policy and to individual team rules 12
Prevention of Improper Influence

In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between athletics
department staff and the Division of Student Life regarding student-athletes shall be conducted
through the Associate Athletic Director for Student Services or the staff members of the Office
of Academic Services. 13

18 Cpaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact Admissions. See Appendix 9, Coaches
Handbook, pg. 7 (“Academic Services will make zll contact with the Office of Admissions.”]; see also, Appendix &,
Compliance Education (As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources available and
wamned not to “directly contact individuals from the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.”).

12 For more information regarding the application of general disciplinary rules of the University to student athletes,
see Appendix 5, 34 Handbook pgs. 60 {"Academic Misconduct Guide for Students”), and 64 [“Institutional
Dizcipline” and “Violations of University Regulations").

 For a detailed explanation of the Student Athlete Discipline Policy, see 54 Handbook, pgs. 67-71 (“Athletic
Department Rules and Policies") and pg. 72 {"Viclations of Team Rules"”).

8 Cpaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact the University's Division of Student Life. See
Appendix 6, Compliance Education (As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources
available and warned not to “directly contact individuals frem the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.”].

42



5. Medical and Athletic Training Services

Medical Decisions

The University places priority on a student-athlete’s health over other considerations.*® The
personal and academic well-being of every student-athlete is the primary concern of the
University and the Athletic Board. Health-related policies, procedures and protocols, including
those related to student-athlete concussions, ! will be followed.

Medical Services to student-athletes at the University are offered in a medical model of care
under which the diagnosis and treatment of student-athletes is the ultimate responsibility of
the physicians employed by the University of Wisconsin School of Medicine and Public Health,
administratively managed by its Division of Sports Medicine in the Department of Orthopedics
and Rehabilitation. The Athletic Department’s licensed athletic trainers practice under the
supervision of these physicians and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine. Each
Head Team Physician is appointed by the Chair of the Department of Orthopedics and
Rehabilitation. The Head Team Physician and the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine
assume joint responsibility for quality assurance and the monitoring of student-athlete care on
an ongoing basis. A Medical Advisory Committee reviews and advises policies and procedures
related to the delivery of medical services to student-athletes. The committes consists of the
Chair of the Division of Sports Medicine, the Head Team Physician, Athletic Department
administrators, a representative from UW Hospital and Clinics and two members of the Athletic
Board.

Prevention of Improper Influence

The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition, resides
with the medical and athletic training staff.1¢ In order to ensure that medical and athletic
training staff are able to exercise their best professional judgment in caring for student-
athletes, coaches shall not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper
influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical or athletic training staff
who works with the coach’s own team. Further, coaches shall not attempt to influence

4 Zee Appendix 5, 5A Handbook, pg. 73 (“Sperts Medicine Policy” and “Pregnancy Policy”); see also Appendix 10,
Competition and Practice [njury Management Plan; see also Appendix 11, Concussion Management Flan.

¥ gee Appendix 10, Competition and Practice Injury Management Plan; see also Appendix 11, Concussion
Management Plan

1% Cpaches’ employment contracts each state that “[c]oach hereby understands and agrees that the final decision
regarding student-athlete participation in organized practices and/or competitions shall be made by the Division's
medical and training room staff,” and that “[t]his provision is essential to this Employment Agreement and
viclation thereof may be considered just cause for termination.”

43



inappropriately any member of the medical or athletic training staff regarding the medical
treatment of a student athlete.

f. Cost of Attendance

Determination of Cost of Attendance

The process for determining the cost of attendance for student-athletes shall be essentially the
same process utilized for all students. Cost of attendance is determined by the Office of Student
Financial aid.?’

Prevention of Improper Influence

Coaches shall not attempt to inappropriately influence any member of the Financial Aid staff in
order to adjust cost of attendance values to better serve recruiting or other athletically-related
interests.2® In order to prevent the potential for improper influence, communication between
athletics department staff, and the Office of Student Financial Aid, shall be conducted through
the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance. The Director of Financial Aid should notify the
Chancellor or designee of any inappropriate communication relating to financial aid policy
received from any booster or official of the University of staff member in the Athletics
Department.

Concern Reporting

The University recognizes that ensuring compliance with the six areas of operational standards
set forth above necessarily requires that individuals have the ability to report concerns, free
from fear of retaliation, regarding whether these standards are being followed. Individuals can
and should repart any concerns they have in relation to these standards to the Athletic
Director, the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance, Compliance staff or the Faculty
Athletics Representative, with the knowledge that no retaliation will occur as a result of voicing
such concerns. Indead, the University encourages individuals to report any concerns they may

have.

7 For the current breakdown of University Cost of Attendance, see Appendix 12, Office of Student Financial Aid,
Undergraduate Cost of Attendance, 2015-16.

12 Cpaches are instructed at yearly coaches meetings not to contact the University's Office of Student Financial Aid.
See Appendix &, Compliance Education (As part of the hiring process, all coaches are told to utilize the resources
available and warned not to “directly contact individuals frem the Registrar, Housing, Admissions, Big Ten, etc.”)

44



Ongoing Obligations

1. Annual Review

The University will conduct an annual internal review of the effectiveness of these Conference
Standards.

2. Reporting Reguirements

Following the internal annual review, the University will report to the Big Ten Conference Office
on how it is achieving compliance with the Conference Standards, and how it is taking action to
avoid governance-related problems in athletics. Within this report, the University will describe
to the Big Ten Conference Office any violation of the Conference Standards.'® The University
will report to the Big Ten Conference Office any revisions to this document, or any material
revisions to any incarporated Appendix, within thirty days of the adoption of any such revision.

2 Within this requirement, it is understood that identifying and addressing violations in a timely manner is a
characteristic of a properly functioning compliance system —indicative of a system that is working as opposed toa
system that is malfunctioning. Accordingly, viclations of these standards that are properly identified and addressed
in a timely manner are to be accounted for in the annual report within the context of demonstrating the
effectiveness of the standards. By contrast, violations that are indicative of systemic failures of the standards (e.g.,
system mafunctions) are to be reported to the conference office within a timeframe that is contemperaneous to
the time at which such failures are discovered.

45



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Exhibit 2

standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Doug Tiedt
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

| am the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student Services. | would expect to be
made aware of any problems related to student-athlete academic suppaort, admission, discipline,
or medical and training services.

With regard to Section 1 of the Standards, “Academic Support;” Section 3 of the
Standards, “Admissions;” Section 4 of the Standards, “Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct;”
and Section 5 of the Standards, “Medical and Athletic Training Services,” | am not aware of any
instances of non-compliance with these Standards. More specifically, in my role as Senior
Assaociate Athletic Director for Student Services, | confirm the following:

¢ The University is committed to both the detection and prevention of academic fraud and
misconduct and abusive use of independent study or cdustering of student-athletes in
particular courses or majors;

¢ While, as a result of sport calendars and team schedules, multiple student-athletes may
end up taking the same classes, there has been no abusive use of clustering that would
bring into question the academic integrity of any of those classes;

¢ Mo coach had direct responsibility for, or exercised undue or improper influence over, the
hiring or supervision of any member of the academic support staff;

# Mo coach attempted to inappropriately influence any member of the academic support
staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student-athlete;

# The ultimate authority for hiring and supervising academic support staff resided, and will
continue to reside, with me;

* | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any faculty member;

* All communication between the Athletic Department staff and faculty regarding a
student-athlete’s performance in class was conducted through me, the staff members of
my office, the staff members of the Office of Compliance, or through the Faculty Athletics
Representative;

¢ The final decision-making authority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides
in the Office of Admissions and Recruitment (“Admissions”), which is the same office that
admits other undergraduate applicants to the University;

46



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

¢ Student-athletes progressed, and will continue to progress, through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants;

¢ Communication between Athletic Department staff, and either Admissions or Admissions
personnel from individual schools and colleges regarding prospective student-athletes has
been appropriately conducted through my office;

¢ While coaches are occasionally invited by Admissions to provide insight regarding an
applicant for admission, | am not aware of any coach attempting to assert undue influence
over the admissions process;

¢ Under the authority of the Division of Student Life, student-athletes were, and continue to
be, subject to general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students
at the University, and were, and continue to be, subject to the same procedures and
sanctions;

& Any actions taken by the Athletic Department under its own Student-Athlete Discipline
Policy or under any individual team rules were in addition to, and independent from, the
process managed by the Division of Student Life;

* Communication between Athletic Department staff and the Division of Student Life
regarding student-athletes was, and will continue to be, conducted through my office;

¢ | am not aware of any coach attempting to influence inappropriately any member of the
staff of the Division of Student Life;

¢ The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition,
resided, and will continue to reside, with the medical and athletic training staff;

+ Coaches did not have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or improper influence
over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical or athletic training staff; and

# | am not aware of any coach attempting to influence inappropriately any member of the

medical or athletic training staff regarding the medical treatment of a student-athlete.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the 5tandards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with

the Standards.
_:l:n..:-n.;ruﬂhrf. -
[ A 11/8/2022
Douglas A. Tiedt, 5r. Assoc. AD (date)
47



standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Katie Smith
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

| am the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance and Senior Woman
Administrator. | would expect to be made aware of any problems related to compliance with
institutional, conference or NCAA rules and any problems related to eligibility of student-athletes.

With regard to Section 1 of the Standards, “Academic Support;” Section 2 of the
standards, “Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance;” and Section 6 of the
Standards “Cost of Attendance,” | am not aware of any instance of non-compliance with these
Standards. Mare specifically, in my role as Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance, |

confirm the following:

* | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any member of the
academic support staff in order to obtain or maintain the academic eligibility of a student
athlete;

* | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any faculty member;

¢ All communication between the Athletic Department staff and faculty regarding a
student-athlete’s performance in class was conducted through the Senior Associate
Athletic Director for Student Services, the staff members of the Office of Academic
Services, the staff members of my office, or through the Faculty Athletics Representative;

& Mo coach had direct responsibility for, or exercised undue or improper influence over, the
hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic compliance staff;

* Mo coach attempted to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic compliance
staff in any way;

¢ The ultimate authority for hiring and supervising athletic compliance staff resided, and
will continue to reside, with me;

* Communication between the Athletic Department staff and such compliance constituents
as the Registrar’s Office, the Office of Student Financial Aid, Big Ten, and NCAA regarding
the application of NCAA or Big Ten rules was and will continue to be conducted through
my office;

¢ | am not aware of any coach attempting to inappropriately influence any member of the
Financial Aid staff in order to adjust cost of attendance values to better serve recruiting or

other athletically-related interests; and

48



standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

¢ Communication between Athletic Department staff and the Office of Student Financial Aid
has been conducted through my office.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

—I.JuI.L":H.'l'L'Il by /:r; .(_,7 o
S L 11/17/2022
[ Rdd S 2t
Katie Smith, 5r. Assoc. AD & SWA (date)
49



standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Scott Owczarek
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

| am the Associate Vice Provost and University Registrar. In that role, the Athletic
Arcademic Eligibility Specialist reports to me through the Assistant Registrar for Data Reporting
and Eligibility and the Associate Registrar for Academic Services. | would expect to be kept
informed of any issues or problems related to monitoring of student-athlete compliance with
institutional requirements, NCAA and Big Ten policies regarding progress toward degree status,
certification of eligibility (for incoming freshman, transfer and continuing student-athletes), and
the completion and submission of two annual reports required by the NCAA, the Academic
Performance Plans and Graduation Success Rates. | am unaware of any instance in which a coach
or any other member of the Athletic Department exerted any inappropriate influence in any of
these areas.

With regard to Section 1 of the Standards, “Academic Support™ and Section 2 of the
Standards, “Institutional, Conference, and NCAA Rules Compliance,” | am not aware of any non-
compliance during the year under review. More specifically, in my role as Associate Vice Provost
and University Registrar, | confirm that my office’s communication with the Athletic Department
in those areas has appropriately been through either the Senior Associate Athletic Director for

Student Services or the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Compliance.

| further confirm that my staff and | are familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of
the Standards, and we are encouraged to report any future concerns we may have regarding
compliance with the Standards.

[ Sealt Puimarck 11/8/2022
Scott Owczarek, Associate Vice Provost & University Registrar (date)
50



standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of André E. Phillips
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

| am the Director of Admissions and Recruitment. The individuals responsible for making
decisions regarding the admission of potential students to the University report to me. | expect to
be kept informed of any issues ar problems related to the admission of student-athletes to the
University.

With regard to Section 3 of the Standards, “Admissions,” | am not aware of any non-
compliance during the year under review. More specifically, in my role as Director, | confirm the

following:

* Student-athletes progressed, and will continue to progress, through the admissions
process in the same manner as other applicants;

# The final decision-making authority for the admission of potential student-athletes resides
in my office, which is the same office that admits other undergraduate applicants to the
University;

* Communication between Athletic Department staff, and my office, including admissions
personnel from individual schools and colleges regarding prospective student-athletes,
has been appropriately conducted through the Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services or the staff members of the Office of Academic Services; and

* While coaches are occasionally invited by my office to provide insight regarding an
applicant for admission, no coach has attempted to assert undue influence over the
admissions process.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards.

— OucuSgmed by

"T'Mi“’ £. Plullips 11/17/2022

CIERAL SR

André E. Phillips, Director of Admissions and Recruitment [date)

51



Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Christina Olstad
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

I am the Dean of Students within Student Affairs. In that role | oversee the Office of
student Conduct and Community Standards (“0SCC5") and the individuals responsible for
investigating and adjudicating student conduct at the University report to me. In this position |
was made aware of potential issues related to student conduct throughout the year under review
and was informed of any issues or problems related to student-athlete conduct at the University.

With regard to Section 4 of the Standards, “Student Discipline and Codes of Conduct,” |
am not aware of any non-compliance during the year under review. More specifically, in my role

as Dean of Students, | confirm the following:

* Under the authority of the O5CCS, student-athletes were, and continue to be, subject to
general disciplinary rules and codes of conduct applicable to other students at the
University, and were, and continue to be, subject to the same procedures and sanctions;

¢ Any actions taken by the Athletic Department under its own Student-Athlete Discipline
Policy or under any individual team rules were in addition to, and independent from, the
process managed by the OSCCS;

* Communication between Athletic Department staff and the OSCCS regarding student-
athletes was conducted through the Senior Associate Athletic Director for Student
Services or the staff members of the Office of Academic Services; and

¢ Coaches did not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the staff of the
O5CCS.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with

the Standards.
[ L. ’ e 11/8/2022
Christina Olstad, Dean of Students (date)
52



standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Michael Moll
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison's annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

| am the Assistant Athletic Director for Sports Medicine. In that role, | oversee the
Athletic Trainers for the University's athletic teams. As Assistant Athletic Director, | would
expect to be kept informed of any issues or problems a team Athletic Trainer may have with

regard to student-athlete care.

With regard to Section 5 of the Standards, “Medical and Athletic Training Services,” lam
not aware of any non-compliance during the year under review. More specifically, in my role as
Assistant Athletic Director, | confirm the following:

& | am not aware of any policies, procedures, or protocols affecting the health ar well-
being of a student-athlete, including those related to student-athlete concussions,
which have not been followed;

* The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition,
resided, and continues to reside, with the medical and athletic training staff;

¢ Coaches did not, and do not, have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the athletic training
staff; and

¢ Coaches did not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the athletic
training staff regarding the medical treatment of any student-athlete.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the standards.

[ ttlacl Mol 11/8/2022

AL

Michael Moll, Asst. AD for Sports Medicine (date)

53



I EEEEEEEEE———
Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Dr. David T. Bernhardt
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my experiences during the year under review, which | understand to be
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

| am the Team Physician for Women's Volleyball, Women's Crew, Women’s Lightweight
Crew, Women's Cross Country, Men's Cross Country and Men's Basketball. | am also the Head
Team Physician, overseeing the medical care provided by the Team Physicians for the
University's other programs. In my role as Team Physician, | have direct experience with the
management and treatment of student-athlete injuries. As Head Team Physician, | would
expect to be kept informed of any issues or problems another Team Physician may be having
with regard to student-athlete medical care.

With regard to Section 5 of the Standards, “Medical and Athletic Training Services,” | am
not aware of any non-compliance during the year under review. More specifically, in my role as
Head Team Physician, | confirm the following:

# Health-related policies, procedures and protocaols, including those related to student-
athlete concussions, have been be followed;

+ The final decision regarding student-athlete participation, in practice or competition,
resided, and continues to reside, with the medical and athletic training staff;

* Coaches did not, and do not, have direct responsibility for, or exercise undue or
improper influence over, the hiring or supervision of any member of the medical staff;
and

* Coaches did not attempt to influence inappropriately any member of the medical staff
regarding the medical treatment of any student-athlete.

I further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with

the Standards.
M'?— %&&?{/ 11/29/22

Dr. David T. Bernhardt (date)

54



I EEEEEEEEE———
standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate Athletics

statement of Helen Faith
To Whom It May Concern:

As part of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s annual internal review of the
effectiveness of its Standards for Safeguarding Institutional Governance of Intercollegiate
Athletics (“Standards”), | have been asked to review the requirements of the Standards and
compare them with my office’s experiences during the year under review, which | understand to
be August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022.

| am the Director of the Office of Student Financial Aid. The individual responsible for
compiling and determining the University's cost of attendance, the Associate Director for Federal
Awards, reports to me in my role as Director. | would expect to be kept informed of any issues or
problems related to the calculation of cost of attendance or application of cost of attendance to a
student-athlete at the University.

With regard to Section & of the Standards, “Cost of Attendance,” | am not aware of any
non-compliance during the year under review, and have confirmed the same with the Associate

Director for Federal Awards. Maore specifically, in my role as Director, | confirm the following:

¢ The process for determining the cost of attendance for student-athletes was, and will
continue to be the same process utilized for all students, as determined by the Office of
Student Financial Aid;

¢ Mo coach or member of the Athletic Department staff has attempted to inappropriately
influence any member of the Office of Student Financial Aid in order to adjust cost of
attendance values to better serve recruiting or other athletically-related interests; and

¢ Communication between Athletic Department staff and the Office of Student Financial Aid
has been conducted through the Associate Athletic Director for Compliance.

| further confirm that | am familiar with the “Concern Reporting” section of the Standards,
and that | am encouraged to report any future concerns | may have regarding compliance with
the Standards. More specifically, | agree to notify the Chancellor or Chancellor's designee of any
inappropriate communication relating to financial aid policy received from any booster or official
of the University or staff member in the Athletic Department

pluw Faily 11/11/2022

EURAL [ e an ) B2

[—uul.. Sigreed by

Helen Faith, Director of the Office of Student Financial Aid (date)

55



|
Appendix J

2021-22 Summary of Big Ten & Level lll/IV NCAA Violations

The Football program sent personalized recruiting graphics to the high

Football 8/20/2021 13.4.11 school coaches of four PSAs prior to the permissible age for the PSAs
to receive such correspondence.
, . 13.02.5.2; An assistant coach in Track & Field had impermissible, off-campus
Men's Track & Field 8/16/2021 13.17.10 contact with a PSA during an evaluation period.
A strength and conditioning coach posted a video on Instagram of
Wrestling 8/19/2021 17.02.19 current student-athletes engaging in voluntary athletically-related
activities.
During an official visit to the institution, a PSA engaged in an
Men's Basketball 9/5/2021 13.6.7.9 impermissible game day simulation by displaying technique associated
with his sport while in uniform and on the practice court.
, 12.7.3.1; Two student-athletes participated in practice prior to completing the
Women's Cross Country 9/20/2021 12.7.3.4 NCAA Drug Testing Consent Form.
Due to an error by the Compliance Office liaison for Women's Rowing,
an Assistant Women’s Rowing coach made impermissible phone calls
Women's Rowing 9/2/2021 13.1.1.3 on two occasions to a prospective student-athlete currently enrolled at
an NAIA institution prior to receiving permission to contact from the
NAIA school.
The institution provided fifteen SAs with athletics aid prior to issuing
Football, Men's Basketball 9/8/2021 15.3.2.2 each SA a written statement outlining the amount, duration, conditions,
and terms of their award.
The institution publicized the campus visits of four Wrestling PSAs,
Wrestling 11/1/2021 13.10.1.4 who were seen in the background of a video posted on the institution’s
social media.
Prior to receiving final academic certification, one Men’s Track & Field
Men's Track & Field 11/8/2021 14.3.5.1 student-athlete was allowed to practice beyond the 45-day temporary
certification period.
, 17.02.14; During the Fall 2021 semester, three SAs performed student host
Football, Men's Hockey Fall 2021 171.7.7 duties on their respective designated required days off.
. Two coaches had impermissible off-campus contact with a PSA prior
Wrestling 12/1072021 13.1.14 to the start of PSA's junior year of high school.
Men's Hockey 1/1/2022 13.4.13 An a§3|§tant coach made one phone call to a PSA prior to the
permissible age for such calls.
Men's & Women's Track & Field 11/18/2021 11.01.6; A volunteer coach was also employed in the Athletic Department as an
11.7.6.2.3.3 | hourly employee.
Men's Soccer 4/14/2022 13.4.1 An agsigtant coach sent a text message to a PSA prior to the
permissible age for such correspondence.
Women's Swimming 4/17/2022 17.02.1; One_SA was not provided with one of two days off during one week
17.1.7.8 outside of the playing season.
Men's Soccer 4/28/2022 13.4.1 The head coach sent a text message to a PSA prior to the permissible
age for such correspondence.
Softball 6/22/2022 13.4.1 An as_S|s_tant coach sent a text message to a PSA prior to the
permissible age for such correspondence.
Women's Soccer 6/29/2022 13.4.1 The head coach sent an email to a PSA prior to the permissible age

for such correspondence.

56



Appendix K

February 9, 2023

Ms. Karen Walsh, President, University of Wisconsin Board of Regents
Mr. Jay O. Rothman, President, University of Wisconsin System

1720 Van Hise Hall

1220 Linden Drive

Madison, W1 53706

Presidents:

In connection with your oversight of the University of Wisconsin-Madison’s intercollegiate athletics
program, we are confirming via this letter and supporting documents, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, the following pertaining to 2021-22.

There were no instances of any major Level | or Level Il compliance violations. We are aware of eighteen
Lewel lll or Level IV secondary violations of non-compliance with NCAA or Big Ten rules and regulations
whiich were reported during 2020-21.

There were no illegal acts or non-compliance with federal, state, or local law by individuals employed by
the institution or representatives of the University of Wisconsin-Madizon's athletics interests.

There are no monitoring reviews currently underway by the NCAA, law enforcement officials, or others,
except for routine audits done annually or periodically.

There are no allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting intercollegiate athletice received in
communication from employees, former employees, or others.

The institution has evaluated and updated its gender-equity plan from our previous self-study, dated
2008-2009.

We have processes in place to ensure background checks are performed on all coaches, assistant
coaches, contractors, volunteers, student employees, and any other individualz serving as an agent of the
institution related to intercollegiate athletics. These processes apply to thoze involved with offering camps
and clinics, and others who participate in activities involving children. Adverse outcomes of background
checks are evaluated by Human Resources.

We understand our fiduciary responsibilities to act in the best interest of the institution even if it conflicts
with the immediate interests of the athletic department.

The athletic depariment has not intervened when a student-athlete is being disciplined under regular
student conduct rules.

“ery truly yours,
N

I'\,l{__l.’-'_ﬂ‘—;& e VL.-‘_]'i.-"I.elA:-"I,_ L y

"*{:‘.hﬂnceﬂw Athletic Director
S L A D m. O
Sr. Associate Athletic Director/SWA Askistant AD for Compiliance

University of Wisconsin - Intercollegiate Athletics
Keliner Hall - 1440 Monroe Street - Madison, Wisconsin 33711
[808) 262-1844 - www.uwhadgers.com

57




|
Appendix L

@ bakertilly

University of Wisconsin-Madison
Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures — Budgetary Basis

June 30, 2022

Together with Independent Auditors’ Report
and Independent Accountants’ Report on
Agreed-Upon Procedures
Required by the Provisions of
NCAA Bylaw 3.24.17

58



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Table of Contents
June 30, 2022
Page
Independent Auditors” Report 1
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis 3
Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis 4
Other Reports (Unaudited)
Independent Accountants” Report on Applying Agreed-Upon
Procedures for Affiliated and Outside Organizations 15
Exhibit A — Statement of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster Organizations 16
Motes to Statemnent of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster Organizations 17
Independent Accountants® Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures
for the University of Wisconsin—Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics 18
Exhibit B — Analysis of Major Revenue and Expenditure Accounts T

59



@ pakertilly

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Chancellor of
University of Wisconsin-Madison

Opinion

‘We have audited the accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures - budgetary basis of the
University of Wisconsin-Madizon Division of Intercollegiate Athlefics (the Athletic Department), for the year
ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the statement of revenues and expenditures - budgetary basis,
which collectively comprise the Athletic Departments financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements refemed to above presents faidy, in all materal
respects, the revenues and expenditures of the Athletic Department as of June 30, 2022 in accordance with
the budgetary basis of accounting described in Mote 1.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our respansibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required o be
independent of the Athletic Depariment and fo meet our other ethical responsibiliies, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discusasd in Mote 1 to the financial statements, the Athletic Department financial statements are intended
to present the changes in finandal position that are atiributable to the transactions of the Athletic Department.
The financial statements do not purport to and do not, present fairly the financial position of the University of
Wisconsin - Madison, as of June 30, 2022, the changes in its financial position or, where applicable, its cash
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial
statements are prepared on the budgetary basiz of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion iz not modified with
respect to this matter.

Baker TIly US, LLP, trading a5 Baker Tilly, Is 3 member of the global nebwark of Baker Tlity Intemnational Lid,, the members of which
are separate and Independent legal entities. & 3020-2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP

1

60



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the budgetary basis of accounting described in Note 1 and for determining that the budgetary basis of
accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in the drocumstances.
Management is also responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from matedal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or emor.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole are free
from maternal misstatement, whether due to frawd or emor, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement
whien it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than for one
resulting from emor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
ovemide of intemal control. Misstatements are considered miaterial if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
&+ Exercize professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the awdit.

+ |dentify and assess the risks of matenial misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or emor, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

+  (Obtain an understanding of intemal conirol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Athletic Department's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting esimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We are regquired to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain intemal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

b Tilly 05, 127

Madison, Wisconsin
January 12, 2023

61



E

si5Eq AEjadong - SaIpUS O DUE S anuSARl JO JUSLUE BIF 0 S9j0U 8a S

TRLTAL T | § (SORmEn B (ROFLRE S § (Cmowe D B (LO®EE N lSeroml T WLILF@  § COBILFEF  §
TEL OF LFE T TF L1552 FROTER T FE © TFLACFF FESFEE WOETET BT
000 BB - DOTIEF
LW . . . . . . LOLPRE
PETOEL PONRSE T ST ROLOE WTL TIEOLL LR
ELLELT LaLdsL TETLL L LOE T TEFEEL ZalLL FROTZE
FLTOL TriEL WL HTL XL B omE [ 75
TRVRET R LT 2 k] LE - SEL - DEEL
LT LR - - - - -
ELFTFST BLEFLOET TH R Lt L8LTS B SEFLL FRLLSE
FLBETE SLFREDL LT L - TR FEULE EEFrELE
SL0LE FLOLLE . - . - .
T AT kL Bl T4 ELE [ R E T
HITELE LIVEEEE - I - .
FTETT LRLTRT BT ALBIT T T AT LU
L R E PRI L LR (Lo FELUREE TR L]
W ETE Tk TR [ e FOT AL PONEL
RO L HEL o dar HEFTLL BEEL o FRRLL oEFLEE
00 T . . o0EEEL . 000002 . .
LFEN T THOELESE T LURRE B BELLOE Lo BOLVREL
LR L L PR LKL e 0LE L ELTLLY
BELRLTE TWOLWE ELDOL LT R DR LT WLHTE
[ . O0TL ool 00T 00T e [T DOODITT
Ll aea ALy e L LEES AEATEN FoL el PLEETLL ST LaE EFRELLE
FrLE= T FF LLOFE EEEEH TFFTEL e T f 4 oTh T
B - - - - - TIFIE 2
[Ty SFFEST L FEEEL L] L SLEER
OTF OTFFE . . . .
oryes LREB0L P Al soan fa= - - e R
AUERNE LT SEODE STLs LEEE SRR F¥LELE PEEDRE
O LA DOET L LROTE TRITIT LR TRF
PEUEETL . - . . - LENRET L
(raarsl LE . LT [E TR
BRI EE TN RLT LR o oRLe .
OLE K Er - - - LRLAEr TRTLY
L0 i - - - - e L -
O L [ [t PELLLE SLLTE QLTWE LOLLLE OLE S L
oo . . . . [T . .
SELENE FEL RO - - - - -
[FL LT : [ [ e [ [EpE
Ll AR L FoE FUEEROT TR LiFER RLE TR L ERE RN E
TEOALEE § STUDET T § WATRL $ LITEW £ WITLIT § TEREY O RNTELNT 8
FEL FEEEE LG SEED R EREER [T TEoH UEE  WELETE 80 WS
L L | i & lammicg)

sargpuadcs (epun)
AT BRI O R

SIS gL

W EROLUIE R SuNeT Sergmedee wog
SArIednd woE
san et Bugeata E0
e EEe el
BT (DU B R
i T T
e PRSI DA
ERUT IR SATED SR LIDE (DU DESFRAD 1200
SGy [RlR] PUR BRERE S0P EE pRD B0 ) DR 20adY

sdnwd pde

SR e e D Bt
[ R T T
T T AR T

A g b )y ey
FenEn EEa )

fupruee

SREuhe a0
BRI DA U A e e AQ PR SRETig
(PR ERUS B U S TR S LLDESEE poddng
BRI DA DU Ay an g
o T (U R R WSRO
BRI MRYFl D Ay e an Lgpied
Lt O P R e TR S
FRIUBIETD
e s e Sy

SN LB dig

Bl (EL

AT

e Bupessdo o

RALIIO | EURMATER | DU FUMAWODUS DD ey
A D Epdy

e Dl b EeaDe T bussj el oy
B O e s e B e Apee.ou wmaliou gy

BT BT DI
A 00 bR G
e T e SR
BT L

e

TDO0E O U P S e,

T R T e e e e

RN FIRERID RR J I EA ] U BIRE - UISUDE SR 0 AERIR A

62



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Index to Notes to Statement of Revenues and Expem?tm — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

Page
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 3
Reporting Entity 5
Basis of Accounting 6
Measurement Focus 6
Capital Assets T
Compensated Absences T
Other Postemployment Benefits T
Claims and Judgments 8
Contributions &
2. Long-Term Debt 8
3. Long-Term Capital Leases 11
4. Campus Loan 12
5. Employees' Retirement System 12
6. Commitments and Contingencies 12
7. Under Armour Contract 12
8. Related Party Transactions 13
9. Capital Assets 13
10. Risk Management 13
11. Contributions and Endowments Held by the University of Wisconsin Foundation 14
12. Suites and Tickets Given to Institution 14
13. Excess Transfers to University 14
14. Subsequent Events 14

63



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis has been prepared on the
budgetary basis of accounting, which is & comprehensaive basis of accounting other than generally
accepied accounting principles (GAAP). The budgetary basis for the University of Wisconsin-Madison
Division of Intercollegiate Athlefics represents the accounting principles used in managing its operations
in accordance with its budgetany procedures. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board establishes
generally accepted accounting principles for states and local governmental units, incleding the University
of Wisconsin-Madizon Division of Intercollegiate Athletics. The most significant differences between the
budgetary basis and GAAP (full accrual basis) are as follows:

*  (Capital asset acquisitions funded by revenues are reported as expenditures rather than as
capital assets.

*  Capital asset acquisitions funded by debt proceeds or from the State of Wisconsin are not
reported.

*  [Depreciation on capital assets is not reported.

*  |ong-term debt proceeds are not reported as other financing sources or as a liability.

*  Principal payments on long-term debt are reported as expenditures rather than as a
reduction of a lability.

*  |n-kind contributions are reporied as revenues and expenditures in the year the goods were
received or senvices provided to the Division of Intercollegiate Athlefics.

See also basis of accounting below.

The format of the statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis is based upon the
prescribed format of the Mational Collegiate Athletic Association (MCAA).

Reporting Entity

The Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (the Athletic Deparment) of the University of Wisconsin-
Madison (the University) is responsible for intercollegiate sports programs of the University. The
Athletic Director is responsible for the day to day operation of the Athletic Depariment. The Athletic
Department iz ulimately governed by the University's Chancellor through the authority delegated by
the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin Syatem, which is part of the State of Wisconsin.

This report includes the statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis of the Athletic
Department's intercollegiate sports programs. All functions related to these intercollegiate sports
programes are included.

An officially recognized booster organization has been established to aid the Athletic Department with
itz outreach booster efforts. This organization is not a component unit of the University and is not
under the direct accounting control of the University or Athletic Department. As such, the
accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis excludes the financial
activity of this booster organization. However, upon satisfying all donor resfrictions, the accompanying
staternent of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis includes those cash or in-kind
contributicns made to the Athletic Department by this recognized booster organization.

The recognized booster organization for the fizcal year ended June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Badger Baskethall Boosters

64



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics
Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis has been prepared on
the budgetary basis of accounting which i a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally
accepied accounting principles (GAAP). Under the budgetary basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Available means
collectible within the cumrent pericd or =0on encugh thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
cumrent period. For this purpose, the Athletic Depariment considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the curment fiscal period. Significant revenues susceplibde to
accrual include most operating revenues. Contributions from the recognized booster organization
generally are recorded as revenues when received in cash or in-kind because they are not
measurable or available until actually received. Cash receipts from advance ticket sales related to
athletic events to be held in the subsequent year are defemred and will be recognized as revenues
during the year the event takes place.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on
long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension expenditures, which ars
recorded as a liability when expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources.
Guaranteed payments to nonconference foothall opponents are reported as expenditures. Ticket
revenue shared with conference opponents are netted against conference distributions.

Consistent with the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue and expenditures for sporis camps are
recorded and included in these statements based on a June 1, 2021 through May 31, 2022 fiscal
year.

Tuition waivers are recorded as athletic student aid. The value of the Under Armour merchandiss
received is reported under the sports or other team expenditure categores while revenue is recorded
under corporate sponsorships.

Measurement Focus

The measurement focus of the statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis is the flow
of current financial resources concept. Under this concept, sources and uses of financial resources,
including capital cullays funded by operating revenues and debt retirements are reflected in
operations. Resources not available to finance expenditures and commitments of the curment period
are not recognized as revenue. Liabilites for claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension
contributicns which will not be currenthy ligquidated using expendable available financial resources are
not recognized as current expenditures. These related expenditures are recognized when the
lighilities are liquidated.

65



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Notes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired for Athletic Deparment purposes are recorded as expenditures in the
staterment of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis when they are funded by operating
revenues. Capital assets funded by debt issued by the State of Wisconsin are recorded as
expenditures as the debt repayments are made by the Athletic Department.

Depreciation is not reflected in the statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis.
Depreciation iz calculated using the atraight-line methoed and reported in Mote 9.

The range of estimated wuseful lves by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and fixtures 20-40 years

Improvemeants other than buildings 10-20 years

Equipment 5-15 years
Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacation time in varying amounts.
Employees are allowed to accumulate unused =ick leave and vacation time and carry it forward to
future periods. The Athletic Depariment is charged for sick leave by the State of Wisconsin as the
sick leave iz eamed. Amounts are accumulated by the State of Wisconzin in the accumulated sick
leave fund in the state's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. Therefore, no sick leave liability
exists for the Athletic Department. Total vested vacation time and other compensated absences at
June 30, 2022 were 53,148,068

Payments for vacation and sick leave will be made at rates in effect when the benefitz are used.
‘Vested benefit liabilites are determined on the basis of cument salary rates and include salary related
payments.

ther Postemployment Benefits

The State of Wisconsin's health insurance program, a cost-sharing multiple: employer, defined benefit
plan, iz an employver-sponaored program offering group medical coverage to eligible employess and
retirees of the State of Wisconsin. Under this plan, retired employees of the State are allowed to pay
the same healthcare premium as active employees creating an implicit rate subsidy for retirees. This
implicit rate subsidy, which is calculated to cover pre-age 65 refirees, is treated as an Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) and results in an actuanal determined liability and expense in the
State of Wisconsin's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. Details of the plan are included in the
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State of Wisconsin for the year ended June 30, 2022,
The liability and expense is computed for the entire State of Wisconsin and is not separately
calculated for the Athletic Department.

66



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics
Notes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as expenditures if all the conditions of Govemmental Accounting
Standards Boand pronouncements are met. There were no significant claime or judgments at year-
end.

The Athletic Department is a unit of a state govermmental body. The Board of Regents of the
University of Wisconzin System and Athletic Department, as a unit of this state agency, cannot be
sued because they have govemmental immunity. Claims arising out of employment or agency
{excluding employment dizcrimination caims) must be brought against state employees or agents
individually under § 895 46 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Contributions

The Athletic Department receives contributions in support of varous intercollegiate sports programs.
Contributions for the Athletic Department are remitted to the University of Wisconsin Foundation (the
Foundation) which is the official noi-for-profit fund raising corporation for the University of Wisconsin-
Madizon.

The Athletic Department applies some of the contributions for capital outlay (capital assets). Other
contributicns are used to suppart the annual operations of the Athletic Depariment including
scholarship support. These confributicns are reported as contribution revenues, which are recorded
as revenues when they are drawn from the Foundation.

2. Long-Term Debt
The State of Wisconsin has issued vanious general obligation bonds, portions of which were for
construction of various Athletic Depariment projects. Total University debt as of June 30, 2022 is
$571 507 287.

The general obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the State of Wisconsin. The Athletic
Department's share of these bonds will be retired by Athletic Department program revenues.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Athletic Department's debt service payments consisted of the

folbowing:

Principal on bonds and notes ¥ 8,009,971

Interest on bonds and notes 271757
Total $10,727 128

67



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics
Notes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

The following represents the unpaid balance of all long-term general obligation debt for which the Athletic
Department is financially responsible:

Average
Issue Original Maturity Interest Balance
Year Debt Date Rates i3
Environmental Management Center
2021 % 9632 041523 D% 3§ 57
Total Environmental Management
Center B
Camp Randall
2013 5744 354  D4MB2S 4.00% 2.141,796
2019 256,884 D4MS29 2.28% 256 884
2020 3 TET 211 D4MS30 2.30% 3,764 054
2021 38,393  D4MS27 5.00% 38 393
2021 11,480 041523 5.00% 6,381
2021 5417120 D4MS26 0.80% 5,141,189
2022 1,547,090 D4MS23 5.00% 1,547 090
Total Camp Randall 13,195 767
Mielzen Stadium
2015 717 04116524 5.00% 4
2021 13 04MS2T 5.00% 13
2021 4 041523 5.00% 2
Total Niglsen Stadium 19
Crew House
2020 445 986 041530 2.30% 445 955
2021 430,690 041523 0.21% 393,108
Total Crenw Houss 840 094
University Ridge Golf Course
2014 39,301 10M7I23 5.00% 20,602
2014 62,443 0414528 5.00% 49 658
Total University Ridge Golf
Course 70,290
9
68



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

Average
Izsue Original Maturity Interest Balance
Year Debit Date Rates G322
Hockey/Swim Facility
2014 5 10,696 0414428 500% % 10,696
2015 276,685 04M827 5.00% 276,686
20186 485,642 10MS27 5.00% 766,590
20186 5819190 101730 4 66% 5,819,190
27 44 250 1017128 5.00% 44 250
Total HockeySwim Facility 6917712
Student Athlete Performance Center
2012 6,474 464 050126 5.50% 1,525,555
2015 1327671 D4M4023 5.00% 65,529
2018 2426096 101527 L.00% 1,687,721
20186 1495566 D4M6/36 5.00% 1,137,185
2018 1,888,621 10M725 4.00% 1,588,621
20186 514,981 04114023 4.00% 93,693
2017 2275911 101731 L.00% 22519458
2017 151,559 D4M16035 5.00% 117,285
2017 299142 10728 £.00% 299 142
2017 840,265 10W17034 4.00% 8540265
2018 135,511 D4ME036 £.00% B4 913
2018 23,552 [D4M539 5.00% 17,065
2019 55815130 0415033 253% 5,815,130
2020 24,570,931 0415442 2.49% 24 870,931
2021 2396004 D4M5031 £.00% 2,306 004
20 447 344 41525 5.00% 447 344
2021 19,230 D4M526 0.80% 19,230
20 8763 041529 1.40% 8,763
2022 32,834 D4M526 £.00% 31284
2022 431,976 04015032 261% 431976
Total Student Athlete
Performance Center 44 295 127
Camp Randall South End Zone (SEZ) 2020 5,671,289 0416441 4.00% 5,474 201
2021 2482 650 D4M16441 4.00% 2376015
2021 12,245 024 04/16M42 4.00% 12,245 024
2022 5822236 D4M6M42 4.00% 5,822,276
Total Camp Randall SEZ 25,920 466
Kohl Center Addition and Renowvation 2021 1,633,070 D4/B/42 4.00% 1,633,070
2022 3699353 D462 4.00% 3,699,353
Total Kohl Center Addition and
Renowvation 5332423
Total 3 56580689

10

69



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

MNotes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

Future general obligation debt repayment schedule:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Principal Interest Total

2023 ¥ 7854801 % 3406307 & 11,261,108
2024 5553434 3,178,072 8,731,506
2025 7,674,597 2,939,625 10,514,223
2026 3,047 484 2725064 5772548
2027 2,097 509 2,609,234 4706743
2028-2032 21,402,039 10,864,956 32,266,995
20332037 25,415,333 6,250,963 31,666,296
20382042 23,335 492 2351 468 25 686 960

Total $ 96580689 % 34325690 F 130906379

3. Long-Term Capital Leases

The State of Wisconsin (State) established a facility in 1992 that provides lease purchase finamcing for
property and certain senvice items acquired by state agencies. This facility is the Third Amended and
Restated Master Lease between the State acting by and through the Wisconsin Depariment of
Adminigtration and U.5. Bank Mational Assodiation. Lease purchase obligations under the Master Lease
are not general obligations of the State, but are payable from appropriations of State agencies
participating in the Master Lease Program, subject to a separate determination. Pursuant to terms of the
Master Lease, the Trustee for the fadility issues parity Master Lease cedificates of parficipation that
evidence proporticnate interest of the owners thereof in lease payments.

The capital leases that are the responsibility of University Ridge Golf Course are for various equipment
capital assets with terme ranging from 48 to 60 months. Equipment under capital leases is included in
capital assets as follows:

Equipment under capital leases 5 550411
Less accumulated depreciation 306,232
Total g 244 179

—_—

Following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments required under these capital leases:

Fizcal Years Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2023 5 24619 § 2891 % 27,510
2024 25,664 1,645 27,509
2025 13,419 336 13,755

Total 5 63902 % 4872 § 68, 774

11

70



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

4. Campus Loan

Az a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Athletic Depariment faced an operaticnal shortfall. The
University provided an intemal loan to the Athletic Depariment in the amount of $20,000,000 at 0 percent
interest to be repaid over six years. The total outstanding intemal loan amount as of June 30, 2022 is

$19,000,000.
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Athletic Department's intemal loan principal payments totaled
$1,000,000.
The: following represents the unpaid balance of the intemnal loan for which the Athletic Department is
financially responsible:
Fizcal Years Ending June 30; Principal

2023 %  2,000.000

2024 3,230,000

2025 3,330,000

2026 4,670,000

2027 4,670,000

Total 5 19,000,000

5. Employees' Retirement System

All eligible Athletic Depariment employees parficipate in the Wisconsin Refirement System (System), a
cost-sharing defined benefit muliple-employer public employes retirement system (PERS).

All permanent employees expected to work over 600 hours a year are eligible to participate in the
Syatem. Covered employess are required by statute to confribute 6.55 percent of their salary to the plan.

Details of the plan are included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State of Wiscongin
for the year ended June 30, 2022,

6. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Athletic Department is party to vanous pending claims and legal procesdings.
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of
management and the Legal Affair's Office that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or
proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Athletic Department's statement of revenues and

expenditures — budgetary basis.

7. Under Armour Contract
A 10-year contract with Linder Armour, Inc. was entered into effective July 1, 2016. During each confract
year, Under Armour shall be the exclusive supplier of athletic footwear and apparel to LW Intercollegiate

Athlefic teams and Uinder Armour shall provide compensation in the form of goods, services and
monetary contributions to benefit the University, Athletic Departmant and the Madison comimunity.

12

71



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Notes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

B. Related Party Transactions
The University provides varous administrative and accounting services to the Athletic Depariment. The
cosat of these senices iz charged to the Athletic Department. In additicn, the Foundation provides vanious
administrative and accounting services to the Athletic Department. The Athletic Department pays the
Foundation for these costs.

9. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Balance Balance
T Additions Deletions G322
Land % 10651178 % - % - % 10851178
Buildings and fixtures 386,159 232 1,967 634 - 368,126,866
Construction in progress 15,499 4586 34,823 308 - 50,322 772
Improvements other than buildings 20,072,895 - - 20,072 898
Equipment 17,217 850 TE3 236 151,752 17,820 334
Total capital assefs 449 600,624 37,554 176 151,752 457,003 0458
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and fixtures 149,716,271 10,455,517 - 160,171,785
Improvements other than buildings 10,976,985 281,770 - 11,258,755
Equipment 12,246 110 1,491 860 147 062 13,590 905
Total accumulated depreciation 172,939 366 12 229 147 147 062 185,021 451
Capital assets, net of
depreciation $.276,661,258 $ 301,981 587

The total Athletic Department related capital projects expenditures for the year are $10,430,205.

10. Risk Management

The Athletic Depariment participates in the State of Wisconzin's Risk Management Fund. It is the general
policy of the State not to purchase commercial insurance for the risks of losses to which it is exposed.
Instead, the State manages its risks intermally and sets aside assets for claim setflement in its Risk
Management Fund. The fund services most claims for gk of loss to which the State is exposed, including
damage to State owned property, liakility for property damages and injuries to third parties, and worker's
compensation.

Im addition, the Athletic Department participates in the Wisconsin Department of Employes Trust Funds.
The Wisconsin Department of Employes Trust Funds operates four pulblic entity risk pools: health
ingurance, group income continuation insurance, protective occupation duty disability insurance and long-
term disability insurance. Informaticn regarding these risk pools can be found in the State’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report

13

72



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics
Notes to Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis
June 30, 2022

11. Contributions and Endowmentz Held by the University of Wisconsin Foundation

Az of June 30, 2022, the total value of the Athletic Department's dedicated endowments being held at the
Foundation for the yearis $124,267,994. As provided in a Memorandum of Agreement with the
Foundation, the Athletic Depariment will draw funds from the Foundation as needed and approved to
finance expenditures of the Athletic Department. The total value of University endowments as of June 30,
2022 is $4,503,003,122.

12. Suites and Tickets Given to University
In fiscal year 2021-2022, the Athletic Department contributed $676,697 to the University in the form of
event tickets, suite access and parking for events. The Athletic Department also waived donation
reguirements in the amount of $129,242 for suites, premium seating and parking.

13. Excess Transfers to Institution
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Athletic Department transferred 32,126,874 to the Institution
in exceas of those funds allowed to be reported with the Less — Tranasfers to Institution category on the
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis.

14. Subsequent Events
Ini fizcal year 2022-23, the State of Wisconsin issued variable rate notes with a portion of the issuance to

finance capital projects induding the Camp Randall Stadium Renovation project (38,342,213 principal)
and Kohl Center Addition project (35,000,000 principal) for the Athlefic Deparment.

14

73



OTHER REPORTS (UMAUDITED)

74



@ pakertilly

Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon
Procedures for Affiliated and Outside Organizations

To the Chancellor of
University of Wisconsin-Madison

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the University of Wisconsin-
Madison Divizion of Intercollegiate Athletics (the Athletic Depariment) and the National Collegiate Athletic
Association (the NCAA), solely to assist you with respect to complying with NCAA Bylaw 3.2.4.17 for the year
ended June 30, 2022_ The University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics iz responsible:
for compliance with the requirements of NCAL Bylaw 3.2 4 17 for the year ended June 30, 2022

The Athletic Department has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to
meet the intended purpose of the engagement of complying with NCAA Bylaw 3.2.4.17. Additionally, the
Athletic Department and the NCAL have agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are
appropriate to meet their purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures
performed may not address all of the: tems of interest to a user of this report and may not mest the needs of
all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures perfomed
are appropriate for their puposes.

The procedures we performed are summarized as follows:

a. We obtained a list of recognized booster organizations (organizations) and related statements of
changes in cash of recognized organizations presented in Exhibit A for the year ended June 30,
2022, No audit procedures were performed on these statements in connection with our audit of the:
Statement of revenues and expenditures — budgetary basis.

b, We confirmed with the appropriate office of the recognized booster organizations the cash receipts
and disbursements of the organizations for the year ended June 30, 2002 a= shown in Exhibit A.

The results of these procedures are summarized in the following Statement of changes in cash of recognized
booster organizations.

We were engaged by the Athletic Department to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not, conduct an audit or review engagement,
the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the
accompanying Statement of changes in cash of recognized booster organizations for the year ended June 30,
2022, Accordingly, we do not express such an opinicn or conclusion. Had we performed additional
procaedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of the Athletic Department and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon-procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and wse of the Chancellor, management of the Athletic
Department or an authorized representative of the NCAA and is not intended to be and should not be, used
by aryone other than these specified parties.

B Tilly U5, 127

Madizon, Wisconsin
January 12, 2023

Balier Tiky US, LLP, trading as Baker Tlily, Is a member of tha global network of Baker Tilly Infemational Lit, the members of which
are separate and independent legal entites. & 2020-2022 Baker Tily US, LLP
15

75



g1

S e e B0 S 000 PR Booar [0 S uy SS00 U 0 JUSWSIEE 0] SSjou
DU Suoie Hueiio a0 sing pue DeJepe g seunpeiound uodn-pesule §uplode uo Lod sl SUeun cooe |usDusde pul ses

LBE'ZEL $ (Dsi'oal) & - $ BLe'Z9L § - 3§ ELEBZL 1 |ejop
LEE'EEL § (Dse'gel) & - £ BIEE9L £ - 7 ELE'BTL £ aFs00g |eqeyseq Jebpeq
aoue|eg uoezjuebin SINB|YIY JO sdaey uolEpuno 4 aaueeg
ysen Jmjsoog jo HEysg ug yses (opjwaosy ysen
Bupuz Heyag up sauny puadx3 lajsoog Slajsuel ] Buuuibag
sainypuadxg anuaney

2202 '0E |aunr papul Jea)
__suoiezuefig Jeisoog pezuboosy jo useg ul sebueys Jo Jawsiels

L RICIEE |

s90e|y}V 1€168]10218Ju| JO UOISIAIQ UOSIPEIN-UISUOISIM JO ANSIBAIN

76



University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

Motes to Statement of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster Organizations
Year Ended June 30, 2022

1. Cash Receipts

Cash receipis represent funds depaosited by recognized booster organizations in their checking accounts
during their fiscal year. These amounts are procesds from club activities. Individual gifts made in support
of paricular sports are made directly to the University of Wisconsin Foundation and, therefore, are not
refiected as a booster organization receipt in the Statement of Changes in Cash of Recognized Booster
Organizations. These amounts are recognized as revenues when they are transferred to the Athletic
Department.

2. Expenditures
Cash disbursements are made by the recognized booster organizations for vanious purposes.
The Athletic Department may expend funds from specific Foundation funds to assist support organizations

in their club activities. These amounts are included in the Athletic Depariment’s Statement of revenues and
expenditures — budgetary basis.

17

77



@ pakertilly

Independent Accountants’ Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures for the
University of Wisconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics

To the Chancellor of
University of Wisconsin-Madison

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the University of
Wizsconsin-Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (the Athletic Department) and the National
Collegiate Athletic Association (the MCAA), solely to assist you with respect to complying with NCAA
Bylaw 3.2.4 17 for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Univeraity of Wisconsin-Madison Division of
Intercollegiate Athletics is responsible for compliance with the requirements of NCAA Bylaw 3.2.4.17 for
the year ended June 30, 2022,

The Athletic Department has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to
meet the intended purpose of the engagement of complying with MCAA Bylaw 3.2.4.17. Additionally, the
Athletic Department and the NCAA have agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are
appropriate to meet their purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures
performed may not address all of the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of
all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed
are appropriate for their purpeses.

The procedures we performed and the associated findings are summarized as follows:
Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures for Revenues

zenearal

+ We compared and agreed each operating revenue category reported in the Statement of Revenues
and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis (Staternent) during the reporting period to supporting schedules
provided by the Athletic Department. If a specific reporting category was less than 4.0 percent of the
total revenues, no procedures were required for that specific category.

* We compared and agreed a sample of operating revenue receipts obtained from the above operating
revenue supporting schedules fo supporting documentation.

* We compared each major revenue account over 10 percent of the total revenues to prior period
amounts and budget estimates. We obtained an explanation from management of any variations
greater than 10 percent.

Mo findings were noted. See Exhibit B for explanation of variations greater than 10 percent.
The above referenced testing included the following procedures for specific revenue sources:

Ticket Sales

* We compared tickets sold during the reporting penod, complimentary tickets provided during the
reporting period, and unsald tickets to the related revenue reported by the Athletic Depariment in the
statement and the related attendance figures and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.
Baker TIly US, LLP, trading 35 Baker Tilly, I5 a mamber of the global natwark of Baker Tlily infemational Lid., the members of which

are separate and Independent legal entities. & 3020-2022 Baker Tilly US, LLP
18

78



Student Fees
+  Thers were no student fees reported on the Statement, no procedures were performed.

Direct State or Other Governmental Support

#  There was no direct atate or other govemmental support reported on the Statement, no procedures
wene performed.

Direct Institutional Support
* We compared the direct institutional support recorded by the Athletic Department during the reporiing

pencd with the institutional supporting budget fransfers documentation and other comolborative
supporting documentation and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.

Transfers Back to [nstitution

* We compared the transfers back to the institution with permanent transfers back to the institution from
the Athletic Department and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.

Indiract Institutional Support

+ Total indirect institutional support reported on the Statement was less than 4 percent of total
revenues, no procedures were required to be performed.

Guarantees

+ Total guaraniees reporied on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total revenues, no
procedures wers reguired to be performed.

Contributions

* We requested information regarding any contributions of monies, goods or senvices received directly
by an intercollegiate athletics program from any affilisted or outside organization, agency of group of
individuals (two or more) not included abwove (e.g., contributions by corporate sponsors) that
constitutes 10 percent or more in aggregate for the reporting year of all contributions received for

intercollegiate athletics during the reporting periods. We obtained supporting documentation for each
contribution and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.
Irrebimned

&  Total in-kind reported on the Statement were lesa than 4 percent of total revenues, no procedures
wene required to be performed.

Compensation and Benefits Provided by a Third-Party

*  There were no compensation and benefits provided by a third party reporied on the Statement, no
procedures were performed.

19

79



Media Rights

* We obtained and inspected agreements explaining the Athletic Department’s total media (broadcast,
television, radio) rights received by the Athletic Department or through the Big 10 conference offices
as reported in the statement.

* We compared and agreed the media right revenues to a summary Statement of all media rights
identified, if applicable and the Athletic Department general ledger and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.
NCAA Distributions

+ Total NCAA Distributions reported on the Statement was less than 4 percent of total revenues, no
procedures required to be perfomned.

Conference Distributions and Conference Distributions of Football Bow! Generated Revenue

* We obtained and inspected agreements related to the Athletic Depariment's conference distributions
and participation in revenues from toumaments during the reporting period for relevant terma and
conditions.

* We compared and agreed the related revenues to the Athletic Department’s general ledger andfor the
Statement and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.
FProgram Sales, Concessions, Novelty Sales and Parking

+ Tolal program sales, concessions, novelty sales and parking were less than 4 percent of total
revenues; no procedures were required to be perfomed

Ruoyalties, Licansing, Advertisameants and Sponsorships

+  We obtained and inspected agreements related to the Athletic Department's participation in revenues:
from royalies, licensing, advertizements and sponsorships during the reporting peniod.

* We compared and agreed the related revenues to the Athletic Department’s general ledger and’or the
Statement and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.
Sports Camp Revenues

+ Total sports camp revenues reporied on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total revenues, no
procedurss weres required to be performed.

Athletics Restricted Endowment and Investment Income

* Total athletics restricted endowment and investment income reported on the Statement was less than
4 percent of total revenues, no procedures were required to be perfomed.

Other

+  Total other revenues reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total revenues, no
procedures were reguired to be performed.

20

80



Foothall Bowl Revenues

Total foothall bowi revenuss reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total revenues, no
procadures wers reguired to be performed.

Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures for Expenditures

Genearal

We compared and agreed each expenditure category reported in the Statement during the reporting
penod to supporting schedules provided by the Athletic Depariment. If a specific reporting category
was less than 4.0 percent of the total expenditures, no procedures were required for that specific
category.

We compared and agreed a haphazardly selected sample of 25 expenditures obtained from the:
Statement to supporting documentation.

We compared each major expenditure account over 10 percent of the total expenditures to prior
pericd amounts and budget estimates. We obtained an explanation from management of any
variations greater than 10 percent.

Mo findings were noted. See Exhibit B for explanation of variations greater than 10 percent.

The above referenced testing included the following procedures for specific expenditure categories:

Athletic Studant Aid

We haphazardly selected a sample of 60 students from the listing of instituional student aid
recipients during the reporting period.

We obtained individual student account detail for each selection and compared total aid allocated
from the related aid award letier to the student's account.

We compared information for each student selected for consistency with information entered into the
HCAA Membership Financial Reporting System using the criteria specified by the NCAA.

We recalculated totals for each sport and overall.

Mo findings were noted.

Guarantess

Total guarantees reported on the Statement wers less than 4 percent of total expenditures; no
procedures weres required to be performed.

21

81



Coaching Salaries, Benafits and Bonuses Paid by the University and Related Entitios
+* We obtained and inspected a listing of coaches employed by the Athletic Department and related

entities during the reporting period. 'We selected a sample of nine coaches' contracts including
footkall and men's and women's basketball from the ksting.

* We compared and agreed the financial terme and conditions of each selection to the related coaching
salaries, benefits and bonuses recorded by the Athletic Department and related entities in the
Statement during the reporting period.

* We obtained and inspected payroll summary registers for the reporting year for each selection. We
compared and agreed payroll summary registers from the reporting perod to the related coaching

salaries, benefits and bonuses paid by the Athletic Depariment and related entities expenditures
recorded by the Athletic Department in the Statemnent during the reporting period.

* We compared and agreed the totals recorded to any employment contracts executed for the sample
selected and recalculated totals.

No findings were noted.
Coaching Other Compensation and Benefits Paid by a Third Party

= There were no coaching other compensation and benefits paid by a third party reported on the
Statement, no procedures were perfomed.

Support StaffAdministrative Salaries, Benefits and Bonuses Paid by the University and Related
Entities

* We haphazardly selected a sample of 25 support staffladminisirative perscnnel employed by the
Athletic Department and related enfities during the reporting period.

* We obtained and inspected reporting period summarny payroll registers for each selection. We
compared and agreed related summary payroll registers to the related support staff adminisirative
salaries, benefits and bonuses paid by the Athletic Department and related entities expenditure
recorded by the Athletic Department in the Statement during the reporting period and recalculated
totals.

Mo findings were noted.

Support StaffAdministrative Other Compensation and Benefits Paid by a Third Party

*  There were no support stafffiadministrative other compensation and benefits paid by a third party
reported on the Statement, no procedures were performed.

Sevarance Paymeiis

*» Total severance payments reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total expenditures,
no procedures were required to be performed.

Recruiting

# Total recruiting expenditures reporied on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

82



Team Travel!
+ We cbtained a copy of the Athletic Department's team travel policies.
* We compared and agreed to existing instifutional and NCAA related policies

+ We obtained general ledger detail and compared to the total expenditures reported and recalculated
totals.

Mo findings wers noted.
Equipment, Uniforms and Supplies

+  Total equipment, uniforms and supplies expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4
percent of total expenditures, no procedures were reguired to be performed.

Game Expanditures

+ Total game expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total expenditures,
no procedures were required to be performed.

Fund Raising, Markating and Promotion

&  Total fund raizing, marketing and promotion expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4
percent of total expenditures, no procedures were reguired to be performed.

Sports Camp Expenditures

+ Total sports camp expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Spirit Groups

*  Total spirt groups expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Athletic Facilities Debt Service, Leases and Rental Fees

+ We obtained a listing of debt service schedules, lease payments and rental fees for athlefics faciliies
for the reporting year. We compared a sample of eight facility payments including the top two highest
facility payments to additional supporting documentation (e.g., debt financing agreements, leases,
rental agreements).

&  We compared amounts recorded to amounts listed in the general ledger detail and recalculated
totals.

Mo findings were noted.

Diract Overhead and Administrative Expanditures

* We obtained general ledger detail and compared to the total expenditures reported. VWe haphazardly
selected a sample of 18 transactions to validate the existence of the tfransaction and accuracy of
recording and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.

23

83



Indiract Institutional Support

+  Total indirect instifutional support reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total
expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Meadical Expanditures and Medical insurance

* Total medical expenditures and medical insurance reporied on the Statement were less than 4
percent of total expenditures, no procedures were reguired to be performed.

Memberships and Duwes

+*  Total membership and dues expenses reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total
expenditures, mo procedures were required to be performed.

Other Operating Expenditures and Transfers to Institution

* Total other operating expenditures and transfers to institution reported on the Statement were less
thian 4 percent of total expenditures, no procedures were required to be performed.

Student-Athlete Meals (non-traveal)

+  Total student-athlete meals (non-iravel) expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4
percent of total expenditures, no procedures were reguired to be performed.

Football Bowi Expenses

&  Total football bowl expenditures reported on the Statement were less than 4 percent of total
expenses, no procedures were required to be performed.

Additional Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures

* We compared and agreed the sports sponsored reported in the MCAA Membership Financial
Reporting System to the squad lists of the Athletic Depariment.

*  We compared cument year Grants-in-Aid revenue distribution equivalencies to pricr year reported
equivalencies per the Membership Financial Report Form. We inguired and documented an
explanation for any variance greater than +- 4 percent.

+ We obtained the Athletic Department’s Sports Sponsorship and Demographics Forms Report for the
reporting year between May and August and compared the countable NCAA sports reported to the
minimum reguirsments set forth in Bylaw 20.9.6_3 for the number of contests and the number of
participants in each contest that is counted toward meeting the minimum-contest requirement. We
compared what the Athletic Depariment reported for these sports as countable, for revenue
distribution purposes, within the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System to the Sports
Sponsorships and Demographics Forms report.

* We compared cument year number of Sports Sponsored to prior year reparted total per the
Memibership Financial Report submission. We inguired and documented an explanation for any
vanance.

&  We agreed the total number of Division | student-athletes who, during the academic year, received a
Pell Grant award and the total value of these Pell Grants reported in the MCAA Membership Financial

Reporting System to a report, generated out of the Athletic Depariment's financial aid reconds, of all
student-athlete Pell Grants.

24

84



*  We compared cument year Pell Grants total to prior year reported total per the Membership Financial
Report submission. We inguired and documented an explanation for any variance greater than +/- 20
grants.

Mo findings were noted.

Supplemental Agreed-Upon Procedures

+  We selected a sample of 25 operating expenditures to compare to supporting documentation for
University of Wisconsin Foundation disbursements on behalf of the Athletic Depariment.

Mo findings were noted.

& We obtained the Athletic Department's achedule of capital assets, including additions and deletions
summarized by type.

Mo findings were noted.

* We obtained support for and disclosed the source of funds, goods and services, as well as the value
associated with individual contributions of monies, goods or services received directly by the Athletic
Department from any affiliated or outside onganization within the notes to the financial statements if
they exceeded 10 percent of all contributions.

We performed this procedure and determined that there were no significant confributions mesting this

criteria. Therefore, no disclosure was incuded in the notes to the Statement of Revenues and

Expenditures — Budgetary Basis.

Minimum Agreed-Upon Procedures Program for Other Reporting ltems

Excess Transfers to Institution and Conference Realignment Expenses

* We obtained general ledger detail and compared to the total expenditures reported. We haphazardly
selected a sample of six fransactions to validate the existence of the transactions and accuracy of
recording and recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.

Total Athletics Relatod Dabt

+  We obtained repayment schedules for all outstanding intercollegiate athletics debt during the
reporting pericd and recalculated annual maturities.

* We agreed the total annual maturities and total cutstanding athletic related debt to supporting
documentation and the Athlefic Depariment's general ledger.

Mo findings were noted.

Total Institutional Debt

* We agreed the total outstanding institutional delbt to supporting documentation and the institution's
audited financial statements, if available or the institution's general ledger.

Mo findings were noted.

25

85



Valuwe of Athletics Dedicated Endowments

* We obtained a schedule of all athletics dedicated endowments maintained by athletics, the institution
and affiliated crganizations and agresd the fair market value in the schedule(s) to supporting
documentation, the general ledger(s) and audited financial statements, if available.

Mo findings were noted.
Valuve of Institutional Endowmnments

* We agreed the total fair market value of instituticnal endowments to supporting documentation, the
institution’s general ledger andior audited financial statements, if available.

Mo findings were noted.
Total Athletics Related Capital Expenditures

* We obtained a schedule of athletics related capital expenditures made by athletics, the institution and
affiliated organizations during the reporting period.

* We obtained general ledger detail and compared to the tofal expenditures reported. We selected
capital asset additions greater than $25,000 and reconciled the recorded costs to supporting
documentatiion. We recalculated totals.

Mo findings were noted.

We were engaged by the Athletic Department to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and
conducted ocur engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did not, conduct an audit or review engagement,
the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the analysis of
major revenue and expenditure accounts with variations greater than ten percent. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matiers might have
come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of the Athletic Department and to mest our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon-procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and wse of the Chancellor, management of the University of

Wisconsin and Athletic Department or an authorzed representative of the NCAA and is not intended to e
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

b Tilly 05, 127

Madison, Wisconsin
January 12, 2023

86



LE

S0y St ey o iUy SO LOISTAKT LCSI BEI-LISU RS Jo Al SUsai s soy sanpescud vodn-peanbe Supdde v pods) Siueiuncose Jusou sdaply 89S

‘Bunuoda) wy DN Jo paiuesad seuctaeD asou) Woy Jepp el 5un Ag se8png Soneuy Sal soDEL| 40 UOISING UOSIDEW—UISLIOOSIN Jo ARSI Byl .
BEINpE20 14 Wod[-pesub'y Ly syl U pSUYsp Y

Teak 10Ud 20} 0) sjqeledwnd A EUSIEL Siawn
sesuadxe ‘sefueyn ABoppoylaw uoneEIo)E Byl oy BB uLou By
‘sesuadxy Bunrisds B0 SY) pEpNSU MEE S AQ pejped U
Aewud Jeyle ey Bu S 0} sesusdxs Jo ABDOpOYIEW LONEDD|E B} 0) sesuadxe
BPELW BeMm susWIsNpe ‘s Myd Bodey wyln Bl Jo mene B Busood | #8L'ELE LES .- EIG'TIV'CES BAIENSIUNLUPE PUE PESWSAD 13840
sgue
syfnopny o joelqns siesm seafoidue ' |LZAd Ul EEAD PUE pPEER pUE Apsieann aug Ag
LZA- UBBMIBT B FE PESERDU) 5314 'AIBUompRy NG LS Alenuue ped sasnuog pUE SJYBUR] SBUBES
DOO'BSES Vel 558 BUEW JIEYS J0) BSERIDUL %7 B PRpNEU Z2Ad | BEZ'060.2% s BAY'OG0 LES BANBJISIU P E/HE)S Yoddng
‘UbiSUuEa PRIU0S J0pUaA B UM Uoauniuod Ul paiiasal
eunseaul epdes e Ag Auewid uaaup |7 A4 0) paedwios 7EA4 sdysiosuods pue
up enuass Busueo) ul WE 2 IEUGIIPPE UE paalaoa Jualiedap auyl | LEF FEVEZS - GIRELOGES suswasienpe ‘Busued) saeloy
"Sjang| [EUCHIPEL] 0] §2E] alam uans
Bupods 'ZZAd Ul 1ZAD U G L-PADD ©) SNP PSSIASIE] MISM B} SUBAR
Burpiods Jo LICHE)[BOUED PUE UOONPEI BU) 0} 8NP BNUSARI 558 panlaosy | Z6E'6.0'LES == 0L8'LEB'BPE Fubu Epa
ENEN SE PRINPLOD S18M FUans
'zzAd BN gL-pAcD 0 8NP LZ A4 U soUBpUS)e pajiu) sesm aisy) | gal'ees .= E60'LLL'BES SHES Y]
suoneue|dx3 |EmoY Joud paafpng | |EMoy WaUNg | WUNOI9Y aInypusdx3/enuassy

ZZ0E '0E sunp

SIUNCoSY AInppuatig pue anuansy ,Jolep Jo sskleuy - g Pauxd

SonaIyIY 21eib2]1023}U] JO UOISIAIQ UOSIPE-UISUODSIM JO AisiaAiun

87



L
@ pakertilly

now, for tomorrow

cmaililig

Reporting and ihsights
from 2022 audit:
University of Wisconsin-Madison -

Division of Intercollegiate
Athletics

June 30, 2022

88




Executive summary

We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the Athletic Department for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated January 12, 2023. This letter presents
communications required by our professional standards.

Your audit should provide you with confidence in your financial statements. The audit was performed
based on information obtained from meetings with management, data from your systems, knowledge of
your Athletic Department's operating envirenment and our risk assessment procedures. We sirive to
provide you clear, concise communication throughout the awdit process and of the final results of our
audit

Additionally, we have included information on key risk areas the Athletic Department should e aware of
in your strategic planning. We are available to discuss these risks as they relate to your organization's
financial stability and future planming.

If you have questions at any point, please connect with us:

- Andrea Jansen, Partner: gndrea janseni@bakertiliy com or +1 (608) 240 2335
- John Rader, Director; john raderi@bakerillv com or +1 (608) 240 2431

Sincerely,

Baker Tilly US, LLP

/ Fl————

f#

[

Andrea Jansen, CPA, CFE

e

John Rader, CPA, MBA

© 2021 Baker Tlly US, LLP Pags |2

89



Responsibilities

Our responsibilities

Az your independent auditor, cur responsibiliies include;

Planning and performing the audit to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstaterment. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance.

Az=sessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o frawd or

ermor. Included in that assessment is a consideration of the Athletic Depariment’s intemal control over

financial reporting.

Performing appropriate procedures based upon our rick assessment.

Evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableneas of significant

accounting estimates made by management.

Forming and expressing an opinion based on our audit about whether the financial statements

prepared by management, with the oversight of those charged with govemance:

- Are free from material misstatement

- Present fairly, in all material respects and in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepied in the United States of America

Cur audit does not relieve management or these charged with govemance of their responsibilibes.

We are also reguired to communicate significant matters related to our audit that are relevant to the
respongibiliies of those charged with govemanice, including:

Imtemal control matters

Cualitative aspects of the Athletic Department’s accounting practice including policies, accounting
estimates and financial statement disclosures

Significant unusual fransactions

Significant difficulies encountered

Dizagreements with management

Circumeatances that affect the form and content of the auditors’ report

Audit consultations outside the engagement team

Comected and uncorrected misstatements

Cther audit findings or issues

#2021 Baker Ty US, LLP Pags |3

90



Audit status

Significant changes to the audit plan

There were no significant changes made to either our planned audit strategy or to the significant risks and
other areas of emphasis identified during the performance of our risk assessment procedures.

& 20 Baker Tlily US, LLP Page |4

91



Audit approach and results

Flanned scope and timing

Audit focus

Based on our understanding of the Athletic Department and environment in which you cperate, we
focused our audit on the following key areas:

- Key transaction cycles

- Areas with significant estimates

- Implementation of new accounting standards

- Areas of complexity including various revenue sources and decentralized financial operations

Our areas of audit focus were informed by, among other things, our assessment of materiality. Materiality

in the context of our audit was determined based on specific qualitative and quantitative factors combined
with our expectations about the Athletic Department’s current year results.

Key areas of focus and significant findings

Significant risks of material misstatement

A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor's
professional judgment, requires special audit consideration. VWithin cur audit, we focused on the following
areas below.

Significant risk areas Testing approach Conclusion
Management overmride of Incorporate unpredictability into Procedures identified provided
controls audit procedures, emphasize sufficient evidence for our audit
professional skepticism and opinion
utilize awdit team with industny
expertize
Improper revenue recognition Confirmation or validation of Procedures identified provided
due to fraud certain revenues supplemented  sufficient evidence for our audit

with detailed predictive analytics  opinion
based on non-financial data
Other areas of emphasis

We also focused on other areas that did not meet the definition of a significant nisk, but were determined
to require spedific awareness and a unique audit response.

Foundation Investrents Revenues Camps
Payroll and related long-term Long-term debt including Financial reporting and required
obligations capital leases disclosures
Capital asseis Oiperating expenditures Student aid
© 2021 Baker Ty US, LLP Page | 5
92



Internal control matters

We considerad the Athletic Department's intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements. We are not
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Athletic Departiment's intermnal control.

Our consideration of intemal confrol was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the nomal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and comect, misstatements an a fimely basis.

A materal weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in intermal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstaterment of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and comected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

© 2021 Baker Ty US, LLP Page |6

93



Fequired communications

Qualitative aspect of accounting practices

- Accounting policies: Management iz responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting
policies. In accordance with the terma of our engagement letter, we have advised management about
the appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the Athletic Depariment are described in Note | o the financial statements. As described in
Mote |, mo new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing accounting policies
was not changed during fiscal year 2022, We noted no transactions entered into by the Athletic
Department during the year for which accounting policies are controversial or for which there is a lack
of authoritative guidance or consensus or diversity in praciice.

- Accounting estimates: Accounting estimates, including fair value estimates, are an integral part of the
financial statements prepared by managemeant and are based on management’s knowledge and
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accouniing
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements, the
degree of subjectvity involved in their development and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The following estimates are of most
gignificance to the financial statements:

Estimate Management's process fo Baker Tilly's conclusions
determine regarding reazonableness
Depreciation Evaluate estimated useful life ofthe  Reasonable in relation o the
asset and original acquigition value  financial statements as a whole
LHility costs Evaluation of information provided Reasonable in relation to the
by Facilites Planning and financial statements as a whole.
Management

There have been no significant changes made by management to either the processes used to
develop the particularty sensitive accounting estimates, or to the significant assumplions used to
develop the estimates, noted above.

- Financial staterment disclosures: The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent
and clear.

Significant unusual transactions

There have been no significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the
Athletic Department or that othenwise appear to be unusual due to their iming, size or nature.

Significant difficulties encountered during the audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with managemeant and completing our audit.
Disagreements with management

Professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resclved o
our satisfaction, conceming a financial accounting, reporting or auditing matter that could be significant to
the financial statements or the auditors' report We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arcse during the course of our audit.

02021 Baker Ty US, LLP Page |7

94



Audit report
There have been no departures from the auwditors’ standard report.

Audit consultations outside the engagement team

We encountered no difficult or contenticus matters for which we consulted outside of the engagement
team.

Uncorrected misstatements and comected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
There were no misstatements identified.

Other audit findings or issues
We encountered no other audit findings or issues that require communication at this time.

We generally discuss a varety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Athletic Depariment's auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the nomal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention.

Other information in documents containing audited basic financial statements
NCAA submissions

The Athletic Department’s audited financial statements will be submitted to the NCAA. Our responaibility
for this information does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the audit report, and we
are not required to perform any procedures to comoborate such other information. Also induded in the
bound document is the statement of changes in cash of recognized booster organizations, and analysis of
major revenue and expenditure accounts. We have not audited these documents and our responsibiliies
are addressed in the Independent Accountant's Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures.

Management's consultations with other accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other aceountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing or accounting matters.

Wrritten communications between management and Baker Tilly

The Appendix includes copies of other material written communications, including a copy of the
management representation letter.

Compliance with laws and regulations

We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations during our audit.
Fraud

We did not identify any known or suspected fraud during ouwr audit.

© 2021 Baker Ty US, LLP Page | &

95



Going concern

Pursuant to professional standards, we are required to communicate to you, when applicable, certain
matters relating to our evaluation of the Athletic Deparment’s ability to continue as a going concemn for a
reasonable period of time but no less than 12 months from the date the financial statements are issued or
available to be issued, including the effects on the financial statements and the adequacy of the related
dizclosures, and the effects on the auditor's report. No such matters or conditions have come to our
attention during our engagement.

Independence

W are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly and the Athletic Departmment that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence.

Related parties

W did not have any significant findings or issues arize during the audit in connection with the Athletic
Department's related parties.

£ 2021 Baker Tlly UZ, LLP Page |8

96



Audit committee resources

Wisit our resource page for regulatory updates, trending challenges and opportunities in your industry and
other imely updates.

Vigit the resource page at hitpa-fwww . bakerfilly comiinsights/audit-committee resource-page.

& 20 Baker Tlily US, LLP Page | 10

97



Management representation letter

© 2021 Baker Ty US, LLP Page | 11

98



January 12, 2023

Baker Tilly US, LLP

4807 Innovate Lane

P.O. Box 7398

Madison, W 53707-7398

Dear Baker Tilly US, LLP:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures-Budgetary Basis of the University of Wisconsin - Madison Division of
Intercollegiate Athletics for the year ended June 30, 2022 for the purpose of expressing an
opinion as to whether the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budgetary Basis presents
fairly, in all material respects, the revenues and expenditures of the University of Wisconsin -
IMadison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics, in conformity with the budgetary basis of
accounting. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the previously
mentioned Statement of Revenues and Expenditures-Budgetary Basis in conformity with the
budgetary basis of accounting. We are also responsible for adopting sound accou nting policies,
establishing and maintaining internal control, and preventing and detecting fraud,

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
ltems are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probahle that
the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or
influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is manetarily
small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We canfirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations macde to
you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit
engagement letter dated September 20, 2018,

2. The financial statements referred to above are presented in conformity with the
budgetary basis of accounting which is an other comprehensive basis of accounting,
This basis of accounting is not in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have engaged you to advise us in
fulfilling that responsibility.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 808.262.1866 |
UWBadgers,com

99



3. We acknowledge our respensibility for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

4, We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, if any, are
reasonable.

6. Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures,
loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable
from or payable to related parties have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the budgetary basis of accounting.

7. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No other events,
including instances of noncompliance, have aceurred subsequent to the financial
statement date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to
or disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements.

8. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

9. All known audit and bookkeeping adjustments have been included in our financial
statements, if any, and we are in agreament with those adjustments.

10. We are not aware of any known actual, possible, pending, or threatened litigation,
claims, or assessments or unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be
recorded or disclosed in the financial state ments in accordance with the budgetary
basis of accounting, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation,
claims, or assessments,

11. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the University of Wisconsin -
Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics is contingently liable, if any, have been
properly recorded or disclosed.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 52711 | 808.262.1866 |
UWBadgers.com

100



Information Provided

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as financial
records and related data, documentation, and other matters,

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity fram whom you determined it
necessary to abtain audit evidence,

d. Minutes of the meetings of the Athletic Board and Finance Committee or
summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been
prepared.

We have not completed an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity
involving:

a. Management,

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal contral, or

£. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
entity received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, or others,

We have no knowledge of known instances of noncompliance or suspected
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements,
or abuse, whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all known related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Manroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |

L'WWBadgers.com

101



Other

18.

15,

20,

21,

22,

23.

24,

25,

There have been no communications from the NCA& or other regulating agencies
concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices,

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We are responsible for compliance with the fedaral and state laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and debt agreements applicable to us; and we have
identified and disclosed to you all federal and state laws, regulations and provisions
of contracts and debt agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data
significant to the audit objectives, including legal and contractual provisions for
reporting specific activities.

There are no —

a. Violations or possible violations of provisions of contracts, federal and state laws
or regulations, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be
considered for disclasure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a
loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance, except those already
disclosed in the finaneial statements, if any.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accounted
for or disclosed by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

The University of Wisconsin - Madison Division of Intercollegiate Athletics has
satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral,

The University of Wisconsin - Madison Division of Intercolleglate Athletics has
complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statement in the event of noncompliance.

The financial statements include all related arganizations.
Capital assets are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable,

depreciated as disclosed in the Motes to the Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures = Budgetary Basis.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall [ 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |

L'WBadgers.com

102



26. We have identified to you any previous fimancial audits, attestation
engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives
of this audit and agreed-upon procedures being undertaken and the
corrective actions taken to address significant findings and
recommendations,

27. With respect to your engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures as
identified by the National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA), dated
March 10, 2022, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the
supplemental procedures agreed to by the University of Wisconsin - Madison
Division of Intercollegiate Athletics (“Athletic Department”), we confirm to
the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to
you during your engagement:

28. We are responsible for the financial and N CAA compliance-related data of
the Athletic Department.

29, As of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, the Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures-Budgetary Basis is presented in accordance with NCAA
guidelines.

30. The Chancellor's office of the University of Wisconsin - Madison and the
Athletic Department’s management selected the criteria. We are responsible
for determining that such criteria are appropriate for our purposes.

31. We have disclosed to you all known matters related to noncompliance [if
any) with NCAA reporting guidelines.

32. We have disclosed to you any communications from regulatory agencies,
internal auditors, and other independent practitioners or consultants, and
others affecting the Athletic Department and NCAA reporting,

33. We have provided you with access to all records that we believe are relevant
to our compliance with the NCAA,

34. We have responded fully to all inquiries made to us by you during the
engagement.

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Monroe Street | Madison, Wisconsin 53711 | 608.262.1866 |
UWBadgers.com

103



Sincerely,

UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-MADISON DIVISION
OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS

Cfn‘lﬁ Meintoth

Athletic Director

Signed: ﬂ?ﬁw——-— JMH

Adam Barnes
Senior Associate Athletic Director-Business Operations

WISCONSIN ATHLETICS

Kellner Hall | 1440 Manroee Street | Madisen, Wisconsin 53711 | 60B.262.1866 |
U'wWEBadgers.com

104



Client service team

© 2021 Baker Ty US, LLP

Andrea Jansen, CPA, CFE

Partner

4807 Inncwvate Ln
Madizon, W1 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 2338
i'_ﬂﬁi.i"::ﬂ"q'ﬂﬁ!ﬁﬂl com

John Rader, CPA, MBA
Director

4307 Innowvate Ln
Madizomn, Wl 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 2431

john.raderf@bakertily.com

Justin Heagland, CPA
Senior Manager

4307 Innovate Ln
Madison, Wl 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 2497

justin.hoagland@bakertily. com

105

Logan Connors
Senior Associate

4807 Innovate Ln
Madison, Wil 53718
United States

T +1 (G0E) 240 67441
Leah Koopman
Associate

4807 Innovate Ln
Madizon, Wil 53718
United States

T +1 (608) 240 2307
Cole Hunstad
Aszsociate

4807 Inmovate Ln
Madizon, Wl 53718
United States

T +1 (G0E) 240 2461
cple hunstadifbakedilly com

Page| 18



Two-way audit communications

As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the
audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting
the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit.

As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have leamed to begin the planning process for next
years audit. It is important that you understand the following pointe about the scope and timing of our
next audit:

a. We address the significant nsks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emmor, through
our detailed audit procedures.

b, We will obtain an understanding of the five components of intemal control sufficient to assess the
risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to
design the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient
understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of confrols
relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been
implementad. We will use such knowledge to:

- ldentify types of potential misstatements.
- Consider factors that affect the risks of material mizstatement.
- Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures.

c. We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting or
compliance with laws, regulations and provisions of contracts or grant programs.

d. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate,
are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are
concemed with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be materal to the
finamcial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by emors or fraud, are detected.

Cur audit will be performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Amernica.

We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here:
a.  We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise.

b.  We understand that the goveming board has the responsibility to oversee the sirategic direction
of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the
respongibility for achieving the cbjectives of the enfity.

¢.  We nesd to know your views about your organization's objectives and strategies, and the related
business risks that may result in material misstaternents.

d. We anticipate that the Athletic Department will receive an unmodified opinion on its financial
statements.

e. Which matters do you consider wamant particular attention during the audit, and are there any
areas where you request addiional procedures to be undertaken?

© 2021 Baker Tlily US, LLP Page | 19

106



f. Hawve you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies?
g. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements?

Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness and actions of the governing
body concerming:

a. The enfity's internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with
govemance oversee the effectiveness of intemal control?

b. The detection or the possibility of fraud?

We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws,
accounting standards, gowemance practices, or other related matters or in response to previous
communications with us.

With regard to the timing of our audit, here iz some general information. Our final financial fisldwork
scheduled during the fall to best coincide with your readiness and report deadlines. After fieldwork, we
wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and review drafts of your report as prepared by your
staff. Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval by your staff. This is
typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork but may vary depending on a number of factors

Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit,
it does not change the auditor's sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit
plan, including the nature, iming and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence.

We realize that you may have guestions on what this all means or wish to provide other feedback. We
welcome the opportunity to hear from you.

£ 2021 Baker Tlly UZ, LLP Page | 20

107



	Agenda
	Audit Committee Agenda Feb. 2023

	Fiscal Year 2023 Audit Plan Progress Report
	Item D.1. Summary - Audit Plan Progress Report
	Item D.1. Att. A.

	Summarized Results of Audits Recently Issued
	Item D.2. Summary - Audits Recently Issued

	Cyber Insurance Renewal Update
	Item E.1. Summary - Cyber Insurance Renewal Update

	Status of SYS 625 and Youth Protection Activities
	Item F.1.  Summary - Status of SYS 625 and Youth Protection Activities

	UW-Madison NCAA Division I Athletics 2021-22 Report
	Item G. Summary - UW-Madison NCAA Division I Athletics 2021-22 Report
	Item G. Attachment A.


